VL.

VIL.

VIIL

—_—
tatesville

NORTH CAROLINA

STATESVILLE CITY COUNCIL MEETING
Statesville City Hall — 227 S. Center Street

September 11, 2025 - 4:00 p.m. - Pre-Agenda Meeting — 2" Floor Conference Room

September 15, 2025 — 6:00 p.m. — Regular Meeting — City Council Chambers

Call to Order

Invocation

Pledge of Allegiance

Adoption of the Agenda

Code of Ethics and Front and Center Strategic Plan p. 3

Presentations & Recognitions

1. Suicide Prevention Month Proclamation p. 7

Public Comment

CONSENT AGENDA

All items below are considered to be routine by City Council and will be enacted by one motion.
There will be no separate discussion on these items unless a Council member requests, in which
event, the item will be removed from the Consent Agenda and considered with the other items
listed in the Regular Agenda.

A.

Consider approving the August 14, 2025, Pre-Agenda Meeting Minutes and the August
18, 2025, Regular Meeting Minutes. (E. Kurfees) p. 9

Consider passing the second reading of TA25-03 Flood Development Permit to amend
Appendix A, Article Il, Part 2, Section 2.25 Flood Development Permit. (Moore) p. 23

Consider passing the second reading of an annexation ordinance AX25-06 2110 E.
Greenbriar Road. (Kirkendall) p. 57

Consider passing a resolution directing the City Clerk to investigate a petition of
annexation, AX25-05 407 and 417 Central Drive, receive the City Clerk’s Certificate of
Sufficiency, and consider passing a resolution fixing a date of September 15, 2025, for a
public hearing for the petition of annexation. (Kirkendall) p. 61

Consider passing a resolution directing the City Clerk to investigate a petition of
annexation, AX25-08 Compass Data Centers for parcels along Stamey Farm Road and
Hickory Hwy, receive the City Clerk’s Certificate of Sufficiency, and consider passing a
resolution fixing a date of September 15, 2025, for a public hearing for the petition of
annexation. (Kirkendall) p. 71

Page 1 of 2

Page 1 of 213



F. Consider passing a resolution directing the City Clerk to investigate a petition of
annexation, AX25-09 City of Statesville Fire Station 5 at 533 Gaither Road, receive the
City Clerk’s Certificate of Sufficiency, and consider passing a resolution fixing a date of
October 6, 2025, for a public hearing for the petition of annexation. (Kirkendall) p. 87

G. Consider approving a work authorization with Parrish and Partners for engineering

services for the Runway Safety Area Improvement Project in the amount of $61,155.00.
(Ferguson) p. 97

H. Consider approving a Request for Proposal for the HOME Funds Administration. (Smith)

p. 117
REGULAR AGENDA
IX. Conduct a public hearing and consider passing a first reading of an ordinance to annex
AX25-07 the Oaks at James Farm at 474 James Farm Road. (Kirkendall) p. 127
X. Conduct a public hearing regarding the condemnation of an abandoned, dilapidated
dwelling located at 1013 Park Drive and consider approving first reading of an ordinance to
demolish the dwelling as unsafe and a dangerous condition or consider foreclosure.
(Marion) p. 135
Xl.  Conduct a public hearing and consider passing the first reading of Rezoning Request
ZC25-13 for Compass Data Centers; properties located on Stamey Farm Road, between
1-40 and US 70 (Hickory Highway), To rezone from Iredell County RA and Iredell County
HB to the City of Statesville LI CZ. (Ashley) p. 145
Xll. City Manager’s Report
Xlll. Advisory Boards Meeting Minutes
1. August 26, 2025 Planning Board Meeting Minutes p. 192
2. July 10, 2025 Design Review Committee Meeting Minutes p. 211
XIV.  Other Business
XV. Closed Session (After Pre- Agenda)
1. G.S. 143-318.11(a)(3), Attorney-Client Privilege
2. G.S.143-318.11(a)(4), Economic Development
XVIL. Adjournment

Page 2 of 2

Page 2 of 213



RESOLUTION 01-25

CODE OF ETHICS FOR THE CITY OF STATESVILLE

PREAMBLE
WHEREAS, the Constitution of North Carolina, Article 1, Section 35, reminds us that a
“frequent recurrence to fundamental principles is absolutely necessary to preserve the blessings
of liberty”; and

WHEREAS, a spirit of honesty and forthrightness is reflected in North Carolina’s state
motto Esse quam videri, “To be rather than to seem”; and

WHEREAS, Section 160A-86 of the North Carolina General Statutes requires local
governing boards to adopt a code of ethics; and

WHEREAS, as public officials we are charged with upholding the trust of the citizens of
this city, and which obeying the law; and

NOW, THEREFORE, in recognition of our blessings and obligations as citizens of the
State of North Carolina and as public officials representing the citizens of the City of Statesville,
and acting pursuant to the requirements of Section 160A-86 of the North Carolina General
Statutes, we, the Statesville City Council, do hereby adopt the following General Principles and
Code of Ethics to guide the City Council in its lawful decision-making.

GENERAL PRINCIPLES UNDERLYING THE CODE OF ETHICS

e The stability and proper operation of democratic, representative government depend upon
public confidence in the integrity of the government and upon responsible exercise of the
trust conferred by the people upon their elected officials.

e Governmental decisions and policy must be made and implemented through proper
channels and processes of the governmental structure.

e Board members must be able to act in a manner that maintains their integrity and
independence yet is responsive to the interests and needs of those they represent.

e Board members must always remain aware that at various times they play different roles:

o As advocates, who strive to advance the legitimate needs of their citizens

o As legislators, who balance the public interest and private rights in considering and
enacting ordinances, orders, and resolutions

o As decision-makers, who arrive at fair and impartial quasi-judicial and administrative
determinations

e Board members must know how to distinguish among these roles, to determine when each
role is appropriate, and to act accordingly.

e Board members must be aware of their obligation to conform their behavior to standards
of ethical conduct that warrant the trust of their constituents. Each official must find within
his or her own conscience the touchstone by which to determine what conduct is
appropriate.

CODE OF ETHICS
The purpose of this Code of Ethics is to establish guidelines for ethical standards of conduct for
the City of Statesville and to help determine what conduct is appropriate in particular cases. It
should not be considered a substitute for the law or for a board member’s best judgment.

Section 1. Board members should obey all laws applicable to their official actions as members
of the board. Board members should be guided by the spirit as well as the letter of the law in
whatever they do.

At the same time, board members should feel free to assert policy positions and opinions without
fear of reprisal from fellow board members or citizens. To declare that a board member is
behaving unethically because one disagrees with that board member on a question of policy (and
not because of the board member’s behavior) is unfair, dishonest, irresponsible, and itself
unethical.

Board members should endeavor to keep up to date, through the board’s attorney and other
sources, about new or ongoing and pertinent constitutional, statutory, or other legal requirements

Page 1 of 3

Page 3 of 213



or ethical issues they may face in their official positions. This educational function is in addition to
the day-to-day legal advice the board may receive concerning specific situations that arise.

Section 2. Board members should act with integrity and independence from improper influence
as they exercise the duties of their offices. Characteristics and behaviors consistent with this
standard include the following:

Adhering firmly to a code of sound values

Behaving consistently and with respect toward everyone with whom they interact

Exhibiting trustworthiness

Living as if they are on duty as elected officials regardless of where they are or what they

are doing

e Using their best independent judgment to pursue the common good as they see it,
presenting their opinions to all in a reasonable, forthright, consistent manner

e Remaining incorruptible, self-governing, and unaffected by improper influence while at the
same time being able to consider the opinions and ideas of others

e Disclosing contacts and information about issues that they receive outside of public
meetings and refraining from seeking or receiving information about quasi-judicial matters
outside of the quasi-judicial proceedings themselves

e Treating other board members, staff and the public with respect and honoring the opinions
of others even when the board members disagree with those opinions

e Not reaching conclusions on issues until all sides have been heard

e Showing respect for their offices and not behaving in ways that reflect badly on those
offices

e Recognizing that they are part of a larger group and acting accordingly

e Recognizing that individual board members are not generally allowed to act on behalf of

the board but may only do so if the board specifically authorizes it, and that the board must

take official action as a body.

Section 3. Board members should avoid impropriety in the exercise of their official duties. Their
official actions should be above reproach. Although opinions may vary about what behavior is
inappropriate, this board will consider impropriety in terms of whether a reasonable person who
is aware of all of the relevant facts and circumstances surrounding the board member’s action
would conclude that the action was inappropriate.

If a board member believes that his or her actions, while legal and ethical, may be misunderstood,
the member should seek the advice of the board’s attorney and should consider publicly
disclosing the facts of the situation and the steps taken to resolve it (such as consulting with the
attorney).

Section 4. Board members should faithfully perform the duties of their offices. They should act
as the especially responsible citizens whom others can trust and respect. They should set a good
example for others in the community, keeping in mind that trust and respect must continually be
earned.

Board members should faithfully attend and prepare for meetings. They should carefully analyze
all credible information properly submitted to them, mindful of the need not to engage in
communications outside the meeting in quasi-judicial matters. They should demand full
accountability from those over whom the board has authority.

Board members should be willing to bear their fair share of the board’s workload. To the extent
appropriate, they should be willing to put the board’s interests ahead of their own,

Section 5. Board members should conduct the affairs of the board in an open and public manner.
They should comply with all applicable laws governing open meetings and public records,
recognizing that doing so is an important way to be worthy of the public’s trust. They should
remember when they meet that they are conducting the public’s business. They should also
remember that local government records belong to the public and not to board members or their
employees.

In order to ensure strict compliance with the laws concerning openness, board members should
make clear that an environment of transparency and candor is to be maintained at all times in the
governmental unit. They should prohibit unjustified delay in fulfilling public records requests.
They should take deliberate steps to make certain that any closed sessions held by the board are
lawfully conducted and that such sessions do not stray from the purposes for which they are
called.

Section 6. This Code of Ethics should be re-executed by each sitting Council member during the
first meeting in January each calendar year.

Page 2 of 3

Page 4 of 213



Page 003

In order to ensure strict compliance with the laws concerning openness, board members should
make clear that an environment of transparency and candor is to be maintained at all times in the
governmental unit. They should prohibit unjustified delay in fulfilling public records requests.
They should take deliberate steps to make certain that any closed sessions held by the board are
lawfully conducted and that such sessions do not stray from the purposes for which they are
called.

Section 6. This Code of Ethics should be re-executed by each sitting Council member during the
first meeting in January each calendar year.

irm that | have read and understand the City of Statesville Code of Ethics

Constantine H. Kutteh, Mayor David Jones, Mayor Pro Tem — Ward One
co. “Jap%or(n "Doris Allison — Ward Three

B ;%bézé
%y\’awé:j%/ar v Joe KHudson — Ward Five

U T
€3 Pearson — Ward Six Kim bérly Wass\rEW

Steve Johnson — gL arge

Page 3 of 3

Page 5 of 213



FRONT(S

CENTER

our
core

values Wwe value & encourage opportunity

MISSION

City of Statesville will serve with integrity, provide

sound resource management, and equitably deliver

high-quality public services.

Description: The City of Statesville recognizes
that its employees are its most valuable asset
and resource for realizing the city’s vision.
Capable and professional employees are
essential for delivering high-quality customer
service and managing the long-term needs of
the community.

STRATEGIC INITIATIVES

1. Attract and retain a talented, engaged
workforce responsive to the needs of
our growing community.

2.Invest in employee professional
development to promote continuous
learning and improvement in our
service delivery.

» CITY of

Y.
tatesville

NORTH CAROLINA

CONNECTING OUR CITY

Description: The City of Statesville strives to
provide high-quality services and utilities for
today’s needs while also planning for the future
needs of residents, businesses, and industry.

STRATEGIC INITIATIVES

1. Proactively maintain existing infrastructure
assets and systems to ensure current quality
and long-term viability.

2.Invest in critical public infrastructure to align
with land use plan goals and accommodate
future growth citywide.

Description: The City of Statesville supports
vibrant communities and safe neighborhoods
with opportunities for employment, recreation,
engagement, and housing.

STRATEGIC INITIATIVES

1. Provide reliable, high-quality public safety
to ensure the wellbeing of residents,
businesses, and visitors.

2.Expand access to enriching cultural,
recreational, and open space amenities.

3. Promote the development of a range of
housing types throughout our community
and housing stability for residents.

You

www.statesvillenc.net




City of Statesville, Porth Carolina

Office of the fHlapor
Proclamation

Suicide Prevention Awareness Month
September 2025

WHEREAS; According to the American Foundation for Suicide Prevention (A.F.S.P.), suicide is the
second leading cause of death among individuals between the ages 10 and 34 with more than
49,000 people dying by suicide annually in the United States; and

WHEREAS; According to Hope for the Day, with an average of 132 suicides completed daily and
each one directly impacting 100 additional people, including friends, service members, family,
social media connections, and neighbors we can safely assume everyone has been impacted by

suicide;

WHEREAS; the American Foundation for Suicide Prevention and Be Well Iredell through their
collaboration, education, and unwavering support aspire to empower our residents with the
protective tools they need to overcome challenges, and foster a safe nurturing environment where

no person feels alone or forgotten;

WHEREAS; the leaders in the City of Statesville recognize that suicide is preventable, and no one
should go through a suicide-related crisis alone, and are deeply committed to tackling the mental
health challenges facing the residents of the City of Statesville and Iredell County;

WHEREAS; we encourage all residents to take time to understand mental health through education
and recognize that we need to take care of our mental health while we take care of each other.

NOW, THEREFORE, be it resolved that I, Constantine H. Kutteh, Mayor of the City of Statesville, do
hereby proclaim the month of September 2025 as National Suicide Prevention Awareness
Month in the City of Statesville.
IN WITNESS WHEREOF | have set
my Hand and caused the Great Seal
of the City of Statesville to be affixed
this 15t day of September 2025

"

C!ﬁnétar\gne'H. Kutteh, Mayor

Page 7 of 213



Page Intentionally Left Blank

Page 8 of 213



MINUTE BOOK 31, PAGE
STATESVILLE CITY COUNCIL PRE-AGENDA MEETING MINUTES - August 14, 2025
CITY HALL — 300 S. CENTER STREET, STATESVILLE, NC - 4:00 P.M.

Council Present: Mayor Pro Tem Jones presiding, Lawton, J. Johnson, Wasson, Pearson,

S. Johnson, Allison, S. Johnson

Council Absent: Kutteh

Staff Present: Ron Smith, Messick, E. Kurfees, Hubert, Griggs, Vaughan, Ferguson,

VL.

VIL.

VIIL.

Pierce, G. Kurfees, Harrell, Caulder, Lawrence (Virtual), Onley, Everette,
Ashley

Call to Order
Mayor Pro Tem Jones called the meeting to order.

Invocation (Only at the Regular Meeting)
Pledge of Allegiance (Only at the Regular Meeting)
Adoption of the Agenda (Only at the Regular Meeting)
Code of Ethics and Front and Center Strategic Plan (Only at the Regular Meeting)
Presentations & Recognitions (Only at the Regular Meeting)
1. Stop the Violence Proclamation
Public Comment (Only at the Regular Meeting)
CONSENT AGENDA
All items below are considered to be routine by City Council and will be enacted by one
motion. There will be no separate discussion on these items unless a Council member

requests, in which event, the item will be removed from the Consent Agenda and
considered with the other items listed in the Regular Agenda.

A. Consider approving the July 31, 2025, Pre-Agenda Meeting Minutes and the
August 4, 2025, Regular Meeting Minutes. (E. Kurfees)

B. Consider approving Budget Amendment #2026-05 for the Statesville Police

Department Expansion and Parking Deck Project to account for project scope
changes since the developers agreement was first executed, as well as
additional costs incurred due to unforeseen subsurface conditions through this
stage of construction. (Hubert)
Harrell stated that there are some issues at the current police station that we need to
get done and we are going to complete these projects during the expansion project. In
addition, storm drainage improvements came to light, and some stormwater funds
were used to pay for that. All these projects took $1.25 million to add to the project
fund.

Page 1 of 5

Page 9 of 213



Smith stated that we are adding funds to the contingency. We do not expect to use the
funds. We have a guaranteed maximum price.

Council Member S. Johnson asked if we still meet the fund balance in the policy.
Lawrence will provide the information on Monday at the council meeting.

C. Consider approving Budget Amendment #2026-06, which appropriates fund
balance to support the rollover of outstanding purchase orders. (Lawrence)
Smith stated that these funds were in last year’s budget, and the projects were not
completed during the fiscal year. We are $3.1 million more this year than last year.

D. Consider rejecting the bid taken by the City on June 9, 2025 for the South
Development Area Project because the project only received one bid, totaling
$10,809,513 for the base bid, exceeded the available budget for the work.
(Ferguson)

Ferguson stated that there was only one bid that was over our engineer’s estimate by
$800,000. We will make some adjustments from the grading plan and separate the
hanger to rebid the project. This project is 100% covered by grant funding.

E. Consider approving a 25 year ground lease for the construction of a 70x70
hangar for Crosswinds Aerospace. (Ferguson)
Ferguson stated that the tenant said that they will abide by what the appraisal says.
The flight school has been kicked out of their current hanger, and they need a new
hanger.

F. Consider passing a resolution directing the City Clerk to investigate a petition of
annexation, AX25-07 The Oaks at James Farm, filed by Mr. Chris LaMack for his
parcel located at 474 James Farm Road, receive the City Clerk’s Certificate of
Sufficiency, and consider passing a resolution fixing a date of September 15,
2025, for a public hearing for the petition of annexation. (Kirkendall)

Kirkendall stated that the Council approved this rezoning in the last meeting.

G. Consider appointing the applicant Steven Haber to the Stormwater Advisory
Commission. (Moore)

H. Consider approving an update to the fee schedule to accomodate an increase of
certain parking citations fees from $10 to $15. (Onley)
Chief Onley stated that the new software has a $4 service charge. This is why we are
increasing the fee.

Mayor Pro Tem Jones asked about booting vehicles. Chief Onley stated we will send
letters to everyone have 4 citations then their car will be booted. We are working on our
public engagement plan.

Smith stated that the online payment is important because they had to come into the
office that closes at 5 PM to pay for their ticket.

REGULAR AGENDA

IX. Conduct a public hearing and consider approving an economic incentive for an
expansion project known as Project Eco Clean. (Bosser)
Page 2 of 5

Page 10 of 213



XI.

XIl.

XIll.

Goodson stated that Project Eco Clean is the company that makes dryer sheets and
washing sheets. They are one of the top four companies that makes this. The company is
wanting to expand their manufacturing plant in Statesville. The project should be
completed by the end of 2026 and have a three year incentive.

Conduct a public hearing and consider passing the first reading of TA25-03 Flood
Development Permit to Amend Appendix A, Article Il, Part 2, Section 2.25 Flood
Development Permit (Moore)

Moore stated that there was a workshop in January 2024 to update our ordinance with our
new flood plain maps. This ordinance went to planning board on July 22" and it passed 4
to 2. There will be 89 structures in the flood plain. Council asked the clerk to send out the
proposed flood plain maps.

Conduct a public hearing and consider passing the first reading of an annexation
ordinance AX25-06 2110 E. Greenbriar Road. (Kirkendall)

Kirkendall stated that the owner is asking for annexation because his well failed. He would
like to connect to city water.

Consider donating Abernathy Park to Power Cross Ministries and in lieu of
requiring the previously agreed upon $80,000 for park purchase, accept their
proposal to invest those funds back into the park for various improvements.
(Griggs)

Griggs stated that the City is currently in a lease with Power Cross for 25 years for the use
of Abernathy Park. During this time, the organization had to complete several
improvements, and they have been maintaining the property. The directors asked the city
to donate the park in lieu of $80,000 purchase price and the funds would go back into the
maintenance of the park.

Council Member Jones asked if the park would be public. Griggs stated that we could put
these stipulations into the donation.

Council Member Allison asked if they would maintain the park the same way they are
doing now. Messick stated that we do not have the ability to ensure they maintain it.
Council Member Allison does not see a benefit for the city. Griggs stated that Power Cross
uses the park for all their programming.

Council Member Wasson asked if it is common to sell parks. Griggs stated the previous
director stated that Power Cross received a grant to maintain the park.

Griggs stated that there are several stipulations we can put on the donation. We do not do
any maintenance in the park. This is something that Power Cross is presenting to Council.

Mayor Pro Tem asked Messick to bring insurance concerns as well as deed restrictions
she would recommend on Monday.

Receive a report on the use of HOME Funds and decide on a plan of action moving
forward. (Smith)

Smith stated that Item XlIl and XIV are related. Before the policy was approved, the
Council wanted to have a discussion regarding the HOME Funds. Smith will walk through
the informaiton that Pepper Bego made in May regarding unspent HOME Funds. The

Page 3 of 5

Page 11 of 213



XIV.

XV.

XVI.

XVIL.

XVIIL.

XIX.

Housing Authority has a plan to use the unspent funds. The projects are supposed to
begin this summer, but the Housing Authority has not pulled permits.

Council Member Allison asked if the SHA will be here on Monday. Smith stated probably
not. Council Member Allison stated that they do not meet their obligations within the 6
months will we give the funds to someone else. Smith stated that the decisions is up to
council.

Council Member Pearson asked if there are other organizations that can take the funds.
Smith stated that staff has talked to Habitat for Humanity, ICARE, and Community
Foundations.

Council Member S. Johnson asked that we have a contractual agreement with goals that
are measurable over a period of time.

Council Member Allison stated that if the organization does not fulfill their obligations then
we should move in a different direction.

Messick stated that anyone who recieves HOME funds, then they will have a contract with
much more detail.

Consider approving the resolution creating an Affordable Housing Special Revenue
Fund and Policy. (Pierce)

Pierce stated that there is a resolution to approve the Special Revenue Fund. He stated
that the policy has two exceptions: federal funds that have been used to purchase land
could have specific regulations and airport property. This policy was set up for
expenditures from the reserve fund as well as HOME fund allocations.

Mayor Pro Tem Jones asked for “by resolution” and “sales and leases” of municipalities in
the Section 2 Scope and Applicability of the policy. Messick stated that the change could
be reviewed and made.

Consider appointing two regular members and two alternates to the Board of
Adjustment. (Kirkendall)
Kirkendall stated that Mr. Zanati would like to be a regular member.

City Manager’s Report
Advisory Boards Meeting Minutes
1. June 16, 2025 Airport Commission Meeting Minutes

Other Business

Lawton stated that Electricities Conference discussed mostly how to inform residents how
Public Power is good for the community. Power is in the people’s hand instead of profit
sharing. Smith stated that Statesville does it right. Some of the larger communities do not
do things that we do.

Closed Session (After Pre- Agenda)
Mayor Pro Tem Jones stated that the council is going into closed session or the following
items:

Page 4 of 5

Page 12 of 213



XX.

1. G.S. 143-318.11(a)(3), Attorney-Client Privilege
2. G.S. 143-318.11(a)(4), Economic Development

Council Member S. Johnson made a motion to go into closed session. Council
Member Hudson seconded the motion. The motion passed unanimously.

Coming out of closed session, Mayor Pro Tem Jones stated that during closed session an
economic development matter and an attorney-client privilege matter were discussed and
no decisions were made.

Adjournment
Council Member Allison made a motion to adjourn. Council Member Hudson
seconded the motion. The motion passed unanimously.

Emily Kurfees, City Clerk David Jones, Mayor Pro Tem

Page 5 of 5

Page 13 of 213



MINUTE BOOK 31, PAGE
STATESVILLE CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING MINUTES - August 18, 2025
CITY HALL — 301 S. CENTER STREET, STATESVILLE, NC - 6:00 P.M.

Council Present: Mayor Kutteh presiding, Jones, Lawton, J. Johnson, Wasson, Pearson, S.
Johnson, Allison, S. Johnson, Hudson

Council Absent: None

Staff Present: Ron Smith, Messick, E. Kurfees, Hubert, Griggs, Vaughan, Ferguson,
Pierce, G. Kurfees, Harrell, Caulder, Lawrence, Onley, Ashley, Hatcher,
Nesbit, Bridges, Leis, Kirkendall

I. Call to Order
Mayor Kutteh called the meeting to order.

ll. Invocation
The City Clerk led the invocation.

lll. Pledge of Allegiance
Mayor Kutteh led in the Pledge of Allegiance.

IV. Adoption of the Agenda
Mayor Kutteh called for a motion on the agenda.

Council Member Allison made a motion to approve the agenda. Council Member
Jones seconded the motion. The motion passed unanimously.

V. Code of Ethics and Front and Center Strategic Plan
Mayor Kutteh stated that we keep the Code of Ethics and Strategic Plan close to mind and
very seriously.
VI. Presentations & Recognitions
1. Stop the Violence Proclamation
Mayor Kutteh read the proclamation into the record and called up members of the
Clean Hearts of Statesville to accept the proclamation.

Demone White thanked the City for their support. He stated that at 9 AM, there will
be a community prayer to unite the community.

2. Rising Start Electricities Award, Cody Leis
Mayor Kutteh presented the Rising Star award to Cody Leis. He stated that only
one individual receive the award for being in the position less than 10 years.

Cody Leis stated that Statesville is doing the right things to move our Public Power
forward. The biggest takeaway is that we are doing the right things for the City.
VII. Public Comment

Page 1 of 8

Page 14 of 213



Fred Foster, 466 Charles Street, discussed the improvements on Monroe Street. One of
his concerns is a light is needed at Rickert and Gardner Bagnal if an apartment complex
is going to go in that area.

VII. CONSENT AGENDA
Mayor Kutteh stated that all items below are considered to be routine by City Council and
will be enacted by one motion. There will be no separate discussion on these items unless
a Council member requests, in which event, the item will be removed from the Consent
Agenda and considered with the other items listed in the Regular Agenda.

A. Consider approving the July 31, 2025, Pre-Agenda Meeting Minutes and the
August 4, 2025, Regular Meeting Minutes. (E. Kurfees)

B. Consider approving Budget Amendment #2026-05 for the Statesville Police
Department Expansion and Parking Deck Project to account for project scope
changes since the developers agreement was first executed, as well as
additional costs incurred due to unforeseen subsurface conditions through this
stage of construction. (Hubert)

C. Consider approving Budget Amendment #2026-06, which appropriates fund
balance to support the rollover of outstanding purchase orders. (Lawrence)

D. Consider rejecting the bid taken by the City on June 9, 2025 for the South
Development Area Project because the project only received one bid, totaling
$10,809,513 for the base bid, exceeded the available budget for the work.
(Ferguson)

E. Consider approving a 25 year ground lease for the construction of a 70x70
hangar for Crosswinds Aerospace. (Ferguson)

F. Consider passing a resolution directing the City Clerk to investigate a petition of
annexation, AX25-07 The Oaks at James Farm, filed by Mr. Chris LaMack for his
parcel located at 474 James Farm Road, receive the City Clerk’s Certificate of
Sufficiency, and consider passing a resolution fixing a date of September 15,
2025, for a public hearing for the petition of annexation. (Kirkendall)

Resolution 30-25
Resolution 31-25

G. Consider appointing the applicant Steven Haber to the Stormwater Advisory
Commission. (Moore)

H. Consider approving an update to the fee schedule to accomodate an increase of
certain parking citations fees from $10 to $15. (Onley)

Mayor Kutteh asked for a motion on the consent agenda.

Council Member Allison made a motion to approve the consent agenda. Council
Member Lawton seconded the motion. The motion passed unanimously.

REGULAR AGENDA

Page 2 of 8

Page 15 of 213



XI.

XIL.

Conduct a public hearing and consider approving an economic incentive for an
expansion project known as Project Eco Clean. (Bosser)

Criag Goodson, Iredell EDC, brought an incentive agreement for an expansion project for
Sheets Laundry Co. They currently have operations in Mooresville and Statesville. If
approved, manufacturing will be expanding in the Statesville plant. The incentive will be
up to $20,541.00 for a capital investment of $2.2 million and at least 9 jobs. The investment
period is until December 2026.

Mayor Kutteh opened the public hearing. Hearing no one came to speak, he closed
the public hearing and asked for a motion on this item.

Council Member Hudson made a motion to approve the incentive agreement.
Council Member Allison seconded the motion. The motion passed unanimously.

Conduct a public hearing and consider passing the first reading of TA25-03 Flood
Development Permit to Amend Appendix A, Article Il, Part 2, Section 2.25 Flood
Development Permit (Moore)

Moore discussed the code change in the Flood Development Permit. In September 2023,
the City was notified that the Floodplain Maps were going to be updated. Because of the
maps, we need to revise the floodplain ordinance. The current freeboard will increase from
1 foot to 4 feet. Another change is to prohibit fill in the floodplain. Staff recommends
approving the ordinance to be effective January 1, 2026.

Mayor Kutteh opened the public hearing. Hearing none, he closed the public
hearing.

Council Member Allison made a motion to approve the text amendment, and
Council Member Lawton seconded the motion. The motion passed unanimously.

Conduct a public hearing and consider passing the first reading of an annexation
ordinance AX25-06 2110 E. Greenbriar Road. (Kirkendall)

Kirkendall stated that this single family home is asking to be annexed due to a failed
well. The single lot is a little over 1.5 acres. Staff recommends annexing the property
because it is in close proximity to City Services.

Mayor Kutteh opened the public hearing. Hearing none, he closed the public
hearing.

Council Member Allison made a motion to approve the annexation. Council
Member Hudson seconded the motion. The motion passed unanimously.

Consider donating Abernathy Park to Power Cross Ministries and in lieu of
requiring the previously agreed upon $80,000 for park purchase, accept their
proposal to invest those funds back into the park for various improvements.
(Griggs)

Griggs stated that in 2011 the City entered a lease with Power Cross for 25 years for
Abernathy Park. Power Cross was required to make several park improvements in the first
2 years of the lease. The lease stated that the Power Cross could purchase the park for
$80,000 anytime during the lease. Power Cross Ministries recommended the City donate
the park to them in lieu of the sale so that they can put the funds back into the park.

Page 3 of 8

Page 16 of 213



XIlL.

Members of the City Council came to Power Cross to see if they would be interested in
purchasing the park because it was not used. The organization did not have funds, but
they leased the park. Power Cross won an MLB Grant to revitalize the park. The money
was invested for community use. They continue to improve the park each year. Power
Cross has invested over $1,000,000 in the park with maintenance and improvements.

Power Cross would like the community to continue to use the park and facilities. The
ministry would like to add an expanded picnic area, new playground, horseshoe pits, and
a new practice field.

Council Member Hudson stated that the organization has been a good steward of the park.
He would be interested in taking this to the next level.

Council Member Allison thanked Power Cross for their work in the park. She asked if the
park would be open to the public. Power Cross stated that outside of the ball field would
be open to the public and the ball field would be scheduled to go with Power Cross
Schedules.

Council Member Wasson asked about policies for donating a park. Griggs stated that
Messick found steps that the City would have to make to donate the park. Messick stated
that the City does not have any internal policies. The general statutes have authority to
ensure that the park would be still used for public use. Messick stated that the deed
restrictions would be presented to council.

Council Member Jones stated that he is for the donation because the organization makes
young men great men in our community.

Council Member S. Johnson is in support of the donation because of the vast
improvements they have made to the park.

Council asked for Messick and staff to discuss an agreement with Power Cross to
donate the park with the stipulation that it can be used by the public.

Receive a report on the use of HOME Funds and decide on a plan of action moving
forward. (Smith)

Smith stated that this is a follow up discussion on the HOME Funds. He stated that these
funds are provided by HUD and used by the Statesville Housing Authority. The Housing
Authority has been working with us and this program for 15 to 20 years. Earlier this year,
the Housing Authority has come to the City regarding the match. Staff was asked to bring
members of the HOME Constoritum staff regarding the HOME Funds. Subsiquently, Smith
sent a review of the discussion. Over the last several years, there was approximately
$700,000 in unspent funds. Following this discussion, staff had a discussion with Housing
Authority. Both organizations came up with a plan to move forward.

Major concerns are that the money is not being spent and the City does not have influence
over the Affordable Housing. Smith presented two tables one from HOME Consortium and
one from the SHA. The total of unspent funds is $1.354,498 in HOME and ARP funds.
SHA is providing an additional $700,000 of Public Housing Capital Funds to finalize the
projects. Smith stated that our staff has been working with the Housing Authority to choose
experts to design the projects. These projects have not officially started with the HOME
Consortium to use the HOME Funds.
Page 4 of 8

Page 17 of 213



Smith recommends that the Council give the Housing Authority 6 months to determine if
the projects start, and they provide the staff a seat at the table. If Council chooses to move
in a different direction, then another agency could take over the HOME funds. The best
practice would be to develop a Request for Proposals with a detailed scope of what the
city wants to achieve.

Council Member J. Johnson asked about the City’s match. Smith stated that the City pays
25% of the HOME funds, not the full $2.1 million. These matches usually come out of the
General Fund.

Council Member Allison is concerned about the how long we will give them to move
forward. Smith stated that he sugguested 6 months to give them time to start construction.

Council Member Jones asked about townhome project. Smith stated that these homes will
be held through the Housing Authority to be funded by HUD. SHA will not sell the
townhomes.

Council Member Allison is concerned that they will not start on the projects.

Council Member Jones asked if the current board has any oversight of the process. Smith
stated they are aware of the projects. He does not know how deep the understanding go.

Council Member Pearson stated that we need to get them a full board. She suggested
that the Housing Authority can apply for the RFP like other organizations.

Council Member Wasson stated that this funding is in additional to their operating costs.
She believes that six months is too long.

Council Member Allison asked when the Mayor will appoint a board member. He stated
that he would work on it tomorrow.

Council Member S. Johnson asked if the funding will follow the Housing Authority. Smith
stated that the HOME funds will go with the new organization, but the City will lose the
additional $780,000 they are adding to the pot.

Council Member Wasson made a motion to suspend what we are doing with the
Housing Authority and put out an RFP to move forward. Council Member Pearson
seconded the motion.

Mayor Kutteh asked for discussion on the motion.

Council Memebr Allison would like to do what is best for the City to move forward. She
asked what does the Housing Athority contributes to the City. Mayor Kutteh stated that the
Housing Authority has put up some cameras on their proeprty, but we are not removing
the Housing Authority from the City.

Council Member Pearson would like to see other organizations to apply to use the funds.
Mayor Kutteh asked how long it will take to put out an RFP. Smith stated it would take 3
weeks to put out and receive a response within another 3 weeks. Council Member Pearson
does not want to exclude the Housing Authority from submitting a request.

Page 5 of 8

Page 18 of 213



XIV.

Council Member S. Johnson disagrees and states that we are not measuring the program.
We need to have measurements and projects need to be prioritized by phases. Each
phase needs a start and completion date. During the project, there needs to be
measurbale degrees of progress. The measurments must be strictly adhered to. There
also needs to be updates on the status of the projects. Once a quarter the City Manager
recieves an update and the City Council recieves an update biannually. He believes the
Housing Authority has the best people to do these projects.

Mayor Kutteh called for a vote on the motion to suspend what we are doing with the
Housing Authority and put out an RFP to move forward.

Aye: Wasson, Jones, Lawton, Hudson, Pearson
Nays: Allison, J. Johnson, S. Johnson
The motion passed 5 to 3.

Consider approving the resolution creating an Affordable Housing Special Revenue
Fund and Policy. (Pierce)

Pierce stated that he is presenting a resolution to create the Special Revenue Fund and
creating the Affordable Housing Policy. He reviewed the policy major points. Money in this
fund would be eligible to be a match to the HOME funds.

Council Member Hudson asked who would administer the project. Pierce stated that a
staff member has been selected to do this project that is currently on staff.

Council Member J. Johnson asked where funds come from for this fund. Pierce stated that
the net proceeds from land sales, grants, donations, and Affordable Housing Incentive
(forthcoming). The match does not have to spent by the budget, but the additional match
can come from the Housing Authority.

Mayor Kutteh stated that the policy is just to decide where the funding comes. Pearson
stated that the fund is the match. Council Member J. Johnson asked what happens if the
fund is empty.

Council Member Allison asked about the donations. Pierce stated that individuals can
make charitable donations earmarked to a Special Revenue Fund.

Council Member Jones stated that we asked for staff to create this policy to use land sale
funds. Each use of the fund, the council must approve the resolution to put the sale in the
fund.

Council Member J. Johnson asked how much funds are in the Special Revenue Fund.
Pierce stated that the previous funds went to the Iredell Housing Fund. Council Member
J. Johnson stated that he is against the policy.

Council Member Hudson stated that he was against it at first. He stated that Staff has
done a great job at creating the policy. He believes that this fund will be fueled by the

general fund. Mayor Kutteh stated that we have been taking it out of the general fund for
years.

Page 6 of 8

Page 19 of 213



After some discussion regarding the policy, Council Member S. Johnson is against the
current policy but in favor of the HOME Program. Council Member Pearson is in favor of
the policy.

Council Member Wasson made a motion to approve the policy and resolution as
presented. Council Member Allison seconded the motion.

Council Member Lawton asked if the match needed an application and why do we just not
give this funding as a match. Pierce stated that there were 2 major considerations: one
was there should be certain properties that should be set aside and not go into the fund
and that the council would retain maximum control in the decisions. The other would be
that we could hold people accountable and have multiple people receive the funds.

Mayor Kutteh asked why would the City like to create bureaucracy. Council Member
Pearson stated that this fund would be a 25% match. Messick stated that she included the
application process for legal reasons. The HOME Funds regulations require an application
process. The policy puts into place that the funding comes to the council during the budget
process. As of right now, there is no framework. It helps prevent discrimination in this
process. Messick stated that we have an application process to streamline the process.
Council Member Lawton does not believe it streamlines the process.

Mayor Kutteh called for a vote on the motion:

Aye: Wasson, Pearson, Allison

Nays: Jones, J. Johnson, Lawton, Hudson, S. Johnson
The motion failed 3 to 5.

Council Member Jones stated that he is for the policy. He stated that the comments that
Mr. Johnson made about measurements may need to be under someone else’s control.

Council Member Lawton made a motion to bring back a revised policy that the
Special Revenue Fund only goes to the 25% HOME Funds match and nothing else.

Messick asked if we should take the application process. Mayor Kutteh stated that the
process should only be for HOME Fund matching and no other projects. Council Member
Jones stated that each sale or lease of property, the funds must be approved by resolution
to go into the fund.

Smith stated that the process is an accounting issue. The funds come from the general
fund now when the Housing Authority requests a match. If we had a designated landing
spot, then we will pull it for a HOME match request from this specific fund.

Mayor Kutteh stated that the purpose was to show support for council to support affordable
housing.

Council Member Jones seconded the motion.
Mayor Kutteh asked for a vote on the motion.
Ayes: Wasson, Pearson, Jones, Allison, Lawton
Nays: Hudson, S. Johnson, J. Johnson

The motion passed 5 to 3.

Page 7 of 8

Page 20 of 213



XV.

XVI.

XVIL.

XVIII.

XIX.

XX.

Consider appointing two regular members and two alternates to the Board of
Adjustment. (Kirkendall)
Mayor Kutteh asked the Council if they would like Mr. Zanotti to move to a regular position.

Council Member S. Johnson made a motion to move Mr. Zanotti to a regular
position. Council Member Lawton seconded the motion. The motion passed
unanimously.

Mayor Kutteh asked for other nominations.

Council Member Jones made a motion to nominate Jeremy Kauffman. Council
Member Lawton seconded the motion. No other nominees were nominated. The
motion passed unanimously.

Mayor Kutteh asked for nominees for the alternate positions.

Council Member S. Johnson nominated James Dobson. Hearing no other nominees,
Mayor Kutteh asked for council to vote for two individuals.

Messick tallied the votes

James Dobson — 5
Jay Smith- 5
Kristin Lindvig- 3

James Dobson and Jay Smith became alternate members.

City Manager’s Report
Smith recognized Nikki Gregory for her service as this is her last City Council meeting.
She has brought the city far from the IT perspective.

Advisory Boards Meeting Minutes
1. June 16, 2025 Airport Commission Meeting Minutes

Other Business

Closed Session (After Pre- Agenda)
1. G.S. 143-318.11(a)(3), Attorney-Client Privilege
2. G.S. 143-318.11(a)(5), Real Property Acquisition

Adjournment
Council Member Allison made a motion to adjourn the meeting. Council Member
Lawton seconded the motion. The motion passed unanimously.

Emily Kurfees, City Clerk Constantine H. Kutteh, Mayor

Page 8 of 8

Page 21 of 213



Page Intentionally Left Blank

Page 22 of 213



CITY COUNCIL ACTION REQUEST

TO: Ron Smith, City Manager

FROM: Randall Moore, Stormwater Program Manager
DATE: 9/4/2025 4:43 PM

ACTION NEEDED ON: September 15, 2025

(Date of Council Meeting)

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED:

Consider passing the second reading of TA25-03 Flood Development Permit to amend Appendix
A, Article ll, Part 2, Section 2.25 Flood Development Permit.

1.

Summary of Information:

As part of the NC Floodplain Mapping Program’s map maintenance process, Iredell County
(Statesville) received their Preliminary update to the County’s FIS on September 29, 2023. The City
is required to update the Floodplain Development Ordinance to reflect the new maps prior to the
maps being adopted for residents to continue to participate in the National Flood Insurance Program.
The City is taking the opportunity to update the ordinance to the latest North Carolina Model
Ordinance from 2021 and institute more stringent regulations to better protect property owners and
the floodplain.

Previous Council or Relevant Actions:
Council previously adopted An Ordinance Amending Appendix A, Article Xll, Section 120 Flood
Damage Prevention Ordinance on the 4th of February, 2008.

Council previously attended information session on proposed update to the Floodplain Ordinance
during a workshop about the Floodplain Map updates on the 8th of January, 2024.

The City of Statesville Planning Board recommended approval of the text amendment as written with
a split vote of 4-2 at the meeting on July 22, 2025.

The board had a great discussion regarding their concerns of the proposed changes of this increased

freeboard. These concerns were:

1. The financial impacts on the non-residential structures that are currently located in the 100-year
floodplain.

2. The practical impacts on residential structures that are in the floodplain if an addition to the
structure is proposed.

3. The impact on property values if all fill in the 100-year floodplain is prohibited

City Council held the public hearing on August 18th. No one from the public came to speak. The first
reading passed unanimously.

Strategic Initiatives Supported/Impacted:
Developing Our City: N/A

Page 23 of 213



Connecting Our City: N/A

Connecting Our Communities: Provide reliable, high-quality public safety to ensure the wellbeing
of residents, businesses, and visitors.

Strategic Plan Values:

The proposed changes will result in the floodplain remaining natural which will prevent flood waters
from impacting both new and existing development. For structures that are constructed, it will make
them more resilient when floods do occur due to the increased freeboard above the base flood
elevation. This will help mitigate future City and property owner costs associated with potential
damage from flooding events.

Budget/Funding Implications:
N/A

Consequences for Not Acting:

The new floodplain maps will not be adopted and citizens properties located in the 100-yr floodplain
could lose their ability to purchase flood insurance. The State recommends a minimum of 2 feet of
freeboard and the City's ordinance will continue to be below that minimum threshold leaving property
and business owners more vulnerable to impacts from flooding events.

Department Recommendation:
Staff recommends approval effective January 1st, 2026.

Manager Comments:
Recommend approving this request, effective January 1st, 2026.

Next Steps:
The ordinance will be effective on January 1, 2026.

. Attachments:

1. Ordinance Amending Apendix A_Article 2_Part 5_Section 2.24 Floodplain Development Ordinance
7-16-25

Page 24 of 213



ORDINANCE NO.

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING APPENDIX A, ARTICLE Il, PART 2, SECTION 2.25 FLOOD
DEVELOPMENT PERMIT

WHEREAS, the City Council passed a Flood Damage Prevention Ordinance on February 4™,
2008; and

WHEREAS, said ordinance regulated the development of property in environmentally
sensitive areas as well as providing owners the ability to purchase flood insurance; and

WHEREAS, the Federal Emergency Management Agency and the North Carolina
Department of Public Safety have revised the flood models for Iredell County and the
municipalities within; and

WHEREAS, in order to continue participation in the National Flood Insurance Program the
City Council must approve a new ordinance and accompanying maps.

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, that Appendix A, Article Il, Part 2, Section 2.25 entitled
“Flood Damage Prevention” be deleted in its entirety and a new Article I, Part 2, Section 2.25
entitled “Flood Damage Prevention” be added as follows:

FLOOD DAMAGE PREVENTION ORDINANCE

ARTICLE 1. STATUTORY AUTHORIZATION, FINDINGS OF FACT, PURPOSE AND OBJECTIVES.2

SECTION A, STATUTORY AUTHORIZATION. ....ooiiiie e 2
SECTION B.  FINDINGS OF FACT. ...t 2
SECTION C.  STATEMENT OF PURPOSE. ...... .o e 3
SECTION D.  OBUJECTIVES. ... 3
ARTICLE 2. DEFINITIONS. ... e e 4
ARTICLE 3. GENERAL PROVISIONS. ... ... 11
SECTION A.  LANDS TO WHICH THIS ORDINANCE APPLIES. ... 11
SECTION B. BASIS FOR ESTABLISHING THE SPECIAL FLOOD HAZARD AREAS. ................ 11
SECTION C. ESTABLISHMENT OF FLOODPLAIN DEVELOPMENT PERMIT...........ccciieinen. 11
SECTION D.  COMPLIANCE. ... 11
SECTION E. ABROGATION AND GREATER RESTRICTIONS. ... 11
SECTION F.  INTERPRETATION. .. ..o 11
SECTION G.  WARNING AND DISCLAIMER OF LIABILITY. ... 12
SECTION H.  PENALTIES FOR VIOLATION. ... ..o 12
ARTICLE 4. ADMINISTRATION. ... ..o 12
SECTION A. DESIGNATION OF FLOODPLAIN ADMINISTRATOR.......coiiiiiiiiieeeee e 12
SECTION B. APPLICATION, PERMIT & CERTIFICATION REQUIREMENTS.............ccccoiiis 11
SECTION C. DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE FLOODPLAIN ADMINISTRATOR..........
17
SECTION D. CORRECTIVE PROCEDURES. ... 19
June 2025 1

City of Statesville Flood Damage Prevention Ordinance

Page 25 of 213



SECTION E. VARIANCE PROCEDURES. ... .o 19
ARTICLE 5. PROVISIONS FOR FLOOD HAZARD REDUCTION. ... 22
SECTION A.  GENERAL STANDARDS. ... e 22
SECTION B.  SPECIFIC STANDARDS. ... e 23
SECTION C.  RESERVED. ... .o 28
SECTION D. STANDARDS FOR FLOODPLAINS WITHOUT ESTABLISHED BASE FLOOD
ELEVATIONS ..o 28
SECTION E. STANDARDS FOR RIVERINE FLOODPLAINS WITH BASE FLOOD ELEVATIONS
BUT WITHOUT ESTABLISHED FLOODWAYS OR NON-ENCROACHMENT AREAS.
................................................................................................................................ 29
SECTION F. FLOODWAYS AND NON-ENCROACHMENT AREAS. ..., 29
SECTION G. STANDARDS FOR AREAS OF SHALLOW FLOODING (ZONE AO). ........cccceeennee. 30
SECTION H.  STANDARDS FOR AREAS OF SHALLOW FLOODING (ZONE AH).......ccccccceeenns 30
ARTICLE 6. LEGAL STATUS PROVISIONS. ... 31
SECTION A.  EFFECT ON RIGHTS AND LIABILITIES UNDER THE EXISTING FLOOD DAMAGE
PREVENTION ORDINANCE. ... .o 31
SECTION B. EFFECT UPON OUTSTANDING FLOODPLAIN DEVELOPMENT PERMITS 31
SECTION C.  SEVERABILITY . ..o 31
SECTION D.  EFFECTIVE DATE. ... 31
SECTION E.  ADOPTION CERTIFICATION. ... 31
FLOOD DAMAGE PREVENTION ORDINANCE
ARTICLE 1. STATUTORY AUTHORIZATION, FINDINGS OF FACT, PURPOSE AND
OBJECTIVES.
SECTIONA. STATUTORY AUTHORIZATION.

The Legislature of the State of North Carolina has in Part 6, Article 21 of Chapter 143; Article 6 of Chapter
153A; Article 8 of Chapter 160A; and Article 7, 9, and 11 of Chapter 160D of the North Carolina General
Statutes, delegated to local governmental units the authority to adopt regulations designed to promote the
public health, safety, and general welfare.

Therefore, the City Council of the City of Statesville, North Carolina, does ordain as follows:

SECTION B.

FINDINGS OF FACT.

(1) The flood prone areas within the jurisdiction of the City of Statesville are subject to periodic
inundation which results in loss of life, property, health and safety hazards, disruption of commerce
and governmental services, extraordinary public expenditures of flood protection and relief, and
impairment of the tax base, all of which adversely affect the public health, safety, and general welfare.

June 2025

City of Statesville Flood Damage Prevention Ordinance

Page 26 of 213



(2) These flood losses are caused by the cumulative effect of obstructions in floodplains causing
increases in flood heights and velocities and by the occupancy in flood prone areas of uses
vulnerable to floods or other hazards.

SECTION C. STATEMENT OF PURPOSE.

It is the purpose of this ordinance to promote public health, safety, and general welfare and to minimize
public and private losses due to flood conditions within flood prone areas by provisions designed to:

(1) Restrict or prohibit uses that are dangerous to health, safety, and property due to water or erosion
hazards or that result in damaging increases in erosion, flood heights or velocities;

(2) Require that uses vulnerable to floods, including facilities that serve such uses, be protected against
flood damage at the time of initial construction;

(3) Control the alteration of natural floodplains, stream channels, and natural protective barriers, which
are involved in the accommodation of floodwaters;

(4) Control filling, grading, dredging, and all other development that may increase erosion or flood
damage; and

(5) Prevent or regulate the construction of flood barriers that will unnaturally divert flood waters or which
may increase flood hazards to other lands.

SECTIOND. OBJECTIVES.

The objectives of this ordinance are to:

(1) Protect human life, safety, and health;

(2) Minimize expenditure of public money for costly flood control projects;

(3) Minimize the need for rescue and relief efforts associated with flooding and generally undertaken at
the expense of the general public;

(4) Minimize prolonged business losses and interruptions;

(5) Minimize damage to public facilities and utilities (i.e. water and gas mains, electric, telephone, cable
and sewer lines, streets, and bridges) that are located in flood prone areas;

(6) Minimize damage to private and public property due to flooding;
(7) Make flood insurance available to the community through the National Flood Insurance Program;
(8) Maintain the natural and beneficial functions of floodplains;

(9) Help maintain a stable tax base by providing for the sound use and development of flood prone areas;
and

(10) Ensure that potential buyers are aware that property is in a Special Flood Hazard Area.

June 2025 3
City of Statesville Flood Damage Prevention Ordinance

Page 27 of 213



ARTICLE 2. DEFINITIONS.

Unless specifically defined below, words or phrases used in this ordinance shall be interpreted so as to
give them the meaning they have in common usage and to give this ordinance it's most reasonable
application.

“Accessory Structure (Appurtenant Structure)” means a structure located on the same parcel of property
as the principal structure and the use of which is incidental to the use of the principal structure. Garages,
carports and storage sheds are common urban accessory structures. Pole barns, hay sheds and the like
qualify as accessory structures on farms, and may or may not be located on the same parcel as the farm
dwelling or shop building.

“Addition (to an existing building)” means an extension or increase in the floor area or height of a building
or structure.

“Alteration of a watercourse” means a dam, impoundment, channel relocation, change in channel
alignment, channelization, or change in cross-sectional area of the channel or the channel capacity, or any
other form of modification which may alter, impede, retard or change the direction and/or velocity of the
riverine flow of water during conditions of the base flood.

“Appeal” means a request for a review of the Floodplain Administrator's interpretation of any provision of
this ordinance.

“Area of Shallow Flooding” means a designated Zone AO or AH on a community's Flood Insurance Rate
Map (FIRM) with base flood depths determined to be from one (1) to three (3) feet. These areas are
located where a clearly defined channel does not exist, where the path of flooding is unpredictable and
indeterminate, and where velocity flow may be evident.

“Area of Special Flood Hazard” see “Special Flood Hazard Area (SFHA)".

“Base Flood” means the flood having a one (1) percent chance of being equaled or exceeded in any given
year.

“Base Flood Elevation (BFE)” means a determination of the water surface elevations of the base flood as
published in the Flood Insurance Study. When the BFE has not been provided in a “Special Flood Hazard
Area”, it may be obtained from engineering studies available from a Federal, State, or other source using
FEMA approved engineering methodologies. This elevation, when combined with the “Freeboard”,
establishes the “Regulatory Flood Protection Elevation”.

“‘Basement” means any area of the building having its floor subgrade (below ground level) on all sides.
“Building” see “Structure”.

“Chemical Storage Facility” means a building, portion of a building, or exterior area adjacent to a building
used for the storage of any chemical or chemically reactive products.

“‘Design Flood” See “Regulatory Flood Protection Elevation.”

“‘Development” means any man-made change to improved or unimproved real estate, including, but not
limited to, buildings or other structures, mining, dredging, filling, grading, paving, excavation or drilling
operations, or storage of equipment or materials.

June 2025 4
City of Statesville Flood Damage Prevention Ordinance

Page 28 of 213



“Development Activity” means any activity defined as Development which will necessitate a Floodplain
Development Permit. This includes buildings, structures, and non-structural items, including (but not
limited to) fill, bulkheads, piers, pools, docks, landings, ramps, and erosion control/stabilization measures.

“Digital Flood Insurance Rate Map (DFIRM)” means the digital official map of a community, issued by the
Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA), on which both the Special Flood Hazard Areas and the
risk premium zones applicable to the community are delineated.

“Disposal” means, as defined in NCGS 130A-290(a)(6), the discharge, deposit, injection, dumping, spilling,
leaking, or placing of any solid waste into or on any land or water so that the solid waste or any constituent
part of the solid waste may enter the environment or be emitted into the air or discharged into any waters,
including groundwaters.

“Elevated Building” means a non-basement building which has its lowest elevated floor raised above
ground level by foundation walls, shear walls, posts, piers, pilings, or columns.

“‘Encroachment” means the advance or infringement of uses, fill, excavation, buildings, structures or
development into a special flood hazard area, which may impede or alter the flow capacity of a floodplain.

“Existing building and existing structure” means any building and/or structure for which the “start of
construction” commenced before the effective date of the floodplain management regulations adopted by
a community, dated September 17, 1979.

“Existing Manufactured Home Park or Manufactured Home Subdivision” means a manufactured home
park or subdivision for which the construction of facilities for servicing the lots on which the manufactured
homes are to be affixed (including, at a minimum, the installation of utilities, the construction of streets,
and either final site grading or the pouring of concrete pads) is completed before the effective date of the
floodplain management regulations adopted by a community, dated September 17, 1979.

“Flood” or “Flooding” means a general and temporary condition of partial or complete inundation of
normally dry land areas from:

(a) The overflow of inland or tidal waters; and/or

(b) The unusual and rapid accumulation or runoff of surface waters from any source.

“Flood Boundary and Floodway Map (FBFM)” means an official map of a community, issued by the FEMA,
on which the Special Flood Hazard Areas and the floodways are delineated. This official map is a
supplement to and shall be used in conjunction with the Flood Insurance Rate Map (FIRM).

“Flood Hazard Boundary Map (FHBM)” means an official map of a community, issued by the FEMA, where
the boundaries of the Special Flood Hazard Areas have been defined as Zone A.

“Flood Insurance” means the insurance coverage provided under the National Flood Insurance Program.

“Flood Insurance Rate Map (FIRM)” means an official map of a community, issued by the FEMA, on which
both the Special Flood Hazard Areas and the risk premium zones applicable to the community are
delineated. (see also DFIRM)

“Flood Insurance Study (FIS)” means an examination, evaluation, and determination of flood hazards,
corresponding water surface elevations (if appropriate), flood hazard risk zones, and other flood data in a
community issued by the FEMA. The Flood Insurance Study report includes Flood Insurance Rate Maps
(FIRMs) and Flood Boundary and Floodway Maps (FBFMs), if published.

June 2025 5
City of Statesville Flood Damage Prevention Ordinance

Page 29 of 213



“Flood Prone Area” see “Floodplain”

“Flood Zone” means a geographical area shown on a Flood Hazard Boundary Map or Flood Insurance
Rate Map that reflects the severity or type of flooding in the area.

“Floodplain” means any land area susceptible to being inundated by water from any source.

“Floodplain Administrator” is the individual appointed to administer and enforce the floodplain management
regulations.

“Floodplain_Development Permit” means any type of permit that is required in conformance with the
provisions of this ordinance, prior to the commencement of any development activity.

“Floodplain_Management” means the operation of an overall program of corrective and preventive
measures for reducing flood damage and preserving and enhancing, where possible, natural resources in
the floodplain, including, but not limited to, emergency preparedness plans, flood control works, floodplain
management regulations, and open space plans.

“Floodplain_ Management Regulations” means this ordinance and other zoning ordinances, subdivision
regulations, building codes, health regulations, special purpose ordinances, and other applications of
police power. This term describes federal, state or local regulations, in any combination thereof, which
provide standards for preventing and reducing flood loss and damage.

“Floodproofing” means any combination of structural and nonstructural additions, changes, or adjustments
to structures which reduce or eliminate flood damage to real estate or improved real property, water and
sanitation facilities, structures, and their contents.

“Flood-resistant_material” means any building product [material, component or system] capable of
withstanding direct and prolonged contact (minimum 72 hours) with floodwaters without sustaining damage
that requires more than low-cost cosmetic repair. Any material that is water-soluble or is not resistant to
alkali or acid in water, including normal adhesives for above-grade use, is not flood-resistant. Pressure-
treated lumber or naturally decay-resistant lumbers are acceptable flooring materials. Sheet-type flooring
coverings that restrict evaporation from below and materials that are impervious, but dimensionally
unstable are not acceptable. Materials that absorb or retain water excessively after submergence are not
flood-resistant. Please refer to Technical Bulletin 2, Flood Damage-Resistant Materials Requirements,
and available from the FEMA. Class 4 and 5 materials, referenced therein, are acceptable flood-resistant
materials.

“Floodway” means the channel of a river or other watercourse, including the area above a bridge or culvert
when applicable, and the adjacent land areas that must be reserved in order to discharge the base flood
without cumulatively increasing the water surface elevation more than one (1) foot.

“Floodway encroachment analysis” means an engineering analysis of the impact that a proposed
encroachment into a floodway or non-encroachment area is expected to have on the floodway boundaries
and flood levels during the occurrence of the base flood discharge. The evaluation shall be prepared by a
qualified North Carolina licensed engineer using standard engineering methods and hydraulic models
meeting the minimum requirements of the National Flood Insurance Program.

“Freeboard” means the height added to the BFE to account for the many unknown factors that could
contribute to flood heights greater than the height calculated for a selected size flood and floodway
conditions, such as wave action, blockage of bridge or culvert openings, precipitation exceeding the base

June 2025 6
City of Statesville Flood Damage Prevention Ordinance

Page 30 of 213



flood, and the hydrological effect of urbanization of the watershed. The BFE plus the freeboard establishes
the “Regulatory Flood Protection Elevation”.

“Functionally Dependent Facility” means a facility which cannot be used for its intended purpose unless it
is located in close proximity to water, limited to a docking or port facility necessary for the loading and
unloading of cargo or passengers, shipbuilding, or ship repair. The term does not include long-term
storage, manufacture, sales, or service facilities.

“Hazardous Waste Management Facility” means, as defined in NCGS 130A, Article 9, a facility for the
collection, storage, processing, treatment, recycling, recovery, or disposal of hazardous waste.

“Highest Adjacent Grade (HAG)” means the highest natural elevation of the ground surface, prior to
construction, immediately next to the proposed walls of the structure.

“Historic Structure” means any structure that is:

(a) Listed individually in the National Register of Historic Places (a listing maintained by the US
Department of Interior) or preliminarily determined by the Secretary of Interior as meeting the
requirements for individual listing on the National Register;

(b) Certified or preliminarily determined by the Secretary of Interior as contributing to the historical
significance of a registered historic district or a district preliminarily determined by the Secretary
to qualify as a registered historic district;

(c) Individually listed on a local inventory of historic landmarks in communities with a “Certified
Local Government (CLG) Program”; or

(d) Certified as contributing to the historical significance of a historic district designated by a
community with a “Certified Local Government (CLG) Program.”

Certified Local Government (CLG) Programs are approved by the US Department of the Interior in
cooperation with the North Carolina Department of Cultural Resources through the State Historic
Preservation Officer as having met the requirements of the National Historic Preservation Act of 1966
as amended in 1980.

“Letter of Map Change (LOMC)” means an official determination issued by FEMA that amends or revises
an effective Flood Insurance Rate Map or Flood Insurance Study. Letters of Map Change include:

(a) Letter of Map Amendment (LOMA): An official amendment, by letter, to an effective National
Flood Insurance Program map. A LOMA is based on technical data showing that a property
had been inadvertently mapped as being in the floodplain, but is actually on natural high ground
above the base flood elevation. A LOMA amends the current effective Flood Insurance Rate
Map and establishes that a specific property, portion of a property, or structure is not located in
a special flood hazard area.

(b) Letter of Map Revision (LOMR): A revision based on technical data that may show changes to
flood zones, flood elevations, special flood hazard area boundaries and floodway delineations,
and other planimetric features.

(c) Letter of Map Revision Based on Fill (LOMR-F): A determination that a structure or parcel of
land has been elevated by fill above the BFE and is, therefore, no longer located within the
special flood hazard area. In order to qualify for this determination, the fill must have been
permitted and placed in accordance with the community’s floodplain management regulations.

(d) Conditional Letter of Map Revision (CLOMR): A formal review and comment as to whether a
proposed project complies with the minimum NFIP requirements for such projects with respect
to delineation of special flood hazard areas. A CLOMR does not revise the effective Flood
Insurance Rate Map or Flood Insurance Study; upon submission and approval of certified as-

June 2025 7
City of Statesville Flood Damage Prevention Ordinance

Page 31 of 213



built documentation, a Letter of Map Revision may be issued by FEMA to revise the effective
FIRM.

“Light Duty Truck” means any motor vehicle rated at 8,500 pounds Gross Vehicular Weight Rating or less
which has a vehicular curb weight of 6,000 pounds or less and which has a basic vehicle frontal area of
45 square feet or less as defined in 40 CFR 86.082-2 and is:

(a) Designed primarily for purposes of transportation of property or is a derivation of such a vehicle,
or

(b) Designed primarily for transportation of persons and has a capacity of more than 12 persons;
or

(c) Available with special features enabling off-street or off-highway operation and use.

“‘Lowest Adjacent Grade (LAG)” means the lowest elevation of the ground, sidewalk or patio slab
immediately next to the building, or deck support, after completion of the building.

“Lowest Floor” means the lowest floor of the lowest enclosed area (including basement). An unfinished or
flood resistant enclosure, usable solely for parking of vehicles, building access, or limited storage in an
area other than a basement area is not considered a building's lowest floor, provided that such an
enclosure is not built so as to render the structure in violation of the applicable non-elevation design
requirements of this ordinance.

“Manufactured Home” means a structure, transportable in one or more sections, which is built on a
permanent chassis and designed to be used with or without a permanent foundation when connected to
the required utilities. The term “manufactured home” does not include a “recreational vehicle”.

“Manufactured Home Park or Subdivision” means a parcel (or contiguous parcels) of land divided into two
or more manufactured home lots for rent or sale.

“‘Map Repository” means the location of the official flood hazard data to be applied for floodplain
management. It is a central location in which flood data is stored and managed; in North Carolina, FEMA
has recognized that the application of digital flood hazard data products have the same authority as hard
copy products. Therefore, the NCEM'’s Floodplain Mapping Program websites house current and historical
flood hazard data. For effective flood hazard data the NC FRIS website (http://FRIS.NC.GOV/FRIS) is the
map  repository, and for historical flood hazard data the FloodNC  website
(http://FLOODNC.GOV/NCFLOOQOD) is the map repository.

“Market Value” means the building value, not including the land value and that of any accessory structures
or other improvements on the lot. Market value may be established by independent certified appraisal;
replacement cost depreciated for age of building and quality of construction (Actual Cash Value); or
adjusted tax assessed values.

“New Construction” means structures for which the “start of construction” commenced on or after the
effective date of the initial floodplain management regulations and includes any subsequent improvements
to such structures.

“Non-Encroachment Area (NEA)” means the channel of a river or other watercourse, including the area
above a bridge or culvert when applicable, and the adjacent land areas that must be reserved in order to
discharge the base flood without cumulatively increasing the water surface elevation more than one (1)
foot as designated in the Flood Insurance Study report.

“Post-FIRM” means construction or other development for which the “start of construction” occurred on or

June 2025 8
City of Statesville Flood Damage Prevention Ordinance

Page 32 of 213



after the effective date of the initial Flood Insurance Rate Map.

“Pre-FIRM” means construction or other development for which the “start of construction” occurred before
the effective date of the initial Flood Insurance Rate Map.

“Principally Above Ground” means that at least 51% of the actual cash value of the structure is above
ground.

“Public Safety” and/or “Nuisance” means anything which is injurious to the safety or health of an entire
community or neighborhood, or any considerable number of persons, or unlawfully obstructs the free
passage or use, in the customary manner, of any navigable lake, or river, bay, stream, canal, or basin.

“Recreational Vehicle (RV)” means a vehicle, which is:

(a) Built on a single chassis;

(b) 400 square feet or less when measured at the largest horizontal projection;

(c) Designed to be self-propelled or permanently towable by a light duty truck;

(d) Designed primarily not for use as a permanent dwelling, but as temporary living quarters for
recreational, camping, travel, or seasonal use, and

(e) Is fully licensed and ready for highway use.

“Reference Level” is the bottom of the lowest horizontal structural member of the lowest floor for structures
within all Special Flood Hazard Areas.

“‘Regulatory Flood Protection Elevation” means the “Base Flood Elevation” plus the “Freeboard”. In
“Special Flood Hazard Areas” where Base Flood Elevations (BFEs) have been determined, this elevation
shall be the BFE plus four (4) feet freeboard. In “Special Flood Hazard Areas” where no BFE has been
established, this elevation shall be at least four (4) feet above the highest adjacent grade.

‘Remedy a Violation” means to bring the structure or other development into compliance with state and
community floodplain management regulations, or, if this is not possible, to reduce the impacts of its
noncompliance. Ways that impacts may be reduced include protecting the structure or other affected
development from flood damages, implementing the enforcement provisions of the ordinance or otherwise
deterring future similar violations, or reducing federal financial exposure with regard to the structure or
other development.

“Riverine” means relating to, formed by, or resembling a river (including tributaries), stream, brook, etc.

“Salvage Yard” means any non-residential property used for the storage, collection, and/or recycling of
any type of equipment, and including but not limited to vehicles, appliances and related machinery.

“Solid Waste Disposal Facility” means any facility involved in the disposal of solid waste, as defined in
NCGS 130A-290(a)(35).

“Solid Waste Disposal Site” means, as defined in NCGS 130A-290(a)(36), any place at which solid wastes
are disposed of by incineration, sanitary landfill, or any other method.

“Special Flood Hazard Area (SFHA)” means the land in the floodplain subject to a one percent (1%) or
greater chance of being flooded in any given year, as determined in Article 3, Section B of this ordinance.

“Start of Construction” includes substantial improvement, and means the date the building permit was

June 2025 9
City of Statesville Flood Damage Prevention Ordinance

Page 33 of 213



issued provided the actual start of construction, repair, reconstruction, rehabilitation, addition placement,
or other improvement was within 180 days of the permit date. The actual start means either the first
placement of permanent construction of a structure on a site, such as the pouring of slab or footings, the
installation of piles, the construction of columns, or any work beyond the stage of excavation; or the
placement of a manufactured home on a foundation. Permanent construction does not include land
preparation, such as clearing, grading, and filling; nor does it include the installation of streets and/or
walkways; nor does it include excavation for a basement, footings, piers, or foundations or the erection of
temporary forms; nor does it include the installation on the property of accessory buildings, such as
garages or sheds not occupied as dwelling units or not part of the main structure. For a substantial
improvement, the actual start of construction means the first alteration of any wall, ceiling, floor, or other
structural part of the building, whether or not that alteration affects the external dimensions of the building.

“Structure” means a walled and roofed building, a manufactured home, or a gas, liquid, or liquefied gas
storage tank that is principally above ground.

“Substantial Damage” means damage of any origin sustained by a structure during any one-year period
whereby the cost of restoring the structure to its before damaged condition would equal or exceed 50
percent of the market value of the structure before the damage occurred. See definition of “substantial
improvement”,

“Substantial Improvement” means any combination of repairs, reconstruction, rehabilitation, addition, or
other improvement of a structure, taking place during any one-year period for which the cost equals or
exceeds 50 percent of the market value of the structure before the “start of construction” of the
improvement. This term includes structures which have incurred “substantial damage”, regardless of the
actual repair work performed. The term does not, however, include either:

(a) Any correction of existing violations of state or community health, sanitary, or safety code
specifications which have been identified by the community code enforcement official and
which are the minimum necessary to assure safe living conditions; or

(b) Any alteration of a historic structure, provided that the alteration will not preclude the structure's
continued designation as a historic structure and the alteration is approved by variance issued
pursuant to Article 4 Section E of this ordinance.

“Technical Bulletin and Technical Fact Sheet” means a FEMA publication that provides guidance
concerning the building performance standards of the NFIP, which are contained in Title 44 of the U.S.
Code of Federal Regulations at Section 60.3. The bulletins and fact sheets are intended for use primarily
by State and local officials responsible for interpreting and enforcing NFIP regulations and by members of
the development community, such as design professionals and builders. New bulletins, as well as updates
of existing bulletins, are issued periodically as needed. The bulletins do not create regulations; rather they
provide specific guidance for complying with the minimum requirements of existing NFIP regulations.

It should be noted that Technical Bulletins and Technical Fact Sheets provide guidance on the minimum
requirements of the NFIP regulations. State or community requirements that exceed those of the NFIP
take precedence. Design professionals should contact the community officials to determine whether more
restrictive State or local regulations apply to the building or site in question. All applicable standards of the
State or local building code must also be met for any building in a flood hazard area.

“Temperature Controlled” means having the temperature regulated by a heating and/or cooling system,
built-in or appliance.

“Variance” is a grant of relief from the requirements of this ordinance.

June 2025 10
City of Statesville Flood Damage Prevention Ordinance

Page 34 of 213



“Violation” means the failure of a structure or other development to be fully compliant with the community's
floodplain management regulations. A structure or other development without the elevation certificate,
other certifications, or other evidence of compliance required in Articles 4 and 5 is presumed to be in
violation until such time as that documentation is provided.

“Water Surface Elevation (WSE)” means the height, in relation to NAVD 1988, of floods of various
magnitudes and frequencies in the floodplains of riverine areas.

“Watercourse” means a lake, river, creek, stream, wash, channel or other topographic feature on or over
which waters flow at least periodically. Watercourse includes specifically designated areas in which
substantial flood damage may occur.

ARTICLE 3. GENERAL PROVISIONS.

SECTION A. LANDS TO WHICH THIS ORDINANCE APPLIES.

This ordinance shall apply to all areas within the jurisdiction, including Extra-Territorial Jurisdictions (ETJs)
as allowed by law, of the City of Statesville.

SECTION B. BASIS FOR ESTABLISHING THE SPECIAL FLOOD HAZARD AREAS.

The Special Flood Hazard Areas are those identified under the Cooperating Technical State (CTS)
agreement between the State of North Carolina and FEMA in its FIS dated March 18, 2008 for Iredell
County and associated DFIRM panels, including any digital data developed as part of the FIS, which are
adopted by reference and declared a part of this ordinance, and all revisions thereto.

SECTION C. ESTABLISHMENT OF FLOODPLAIN DEVELOPMENT PERMIT.

A Floodplain Development Permit shall be required in conformance with the provisions of this ordinance
prior to the commencement of any development activities within Special Flood Hazard Areas determined
in accordance with the provisions of Article 3, Section B of this ordinance.

SECTIOND. COMPLIANCE.

No structure or land shall hereafter be located, extended, converted, altered, or developed in any way
without full compliance with the terms of this ordinance and other applicable regulations.

SECTION E. ABROGATION AND GREATER RESTRICTIONS.

This ordinance is not intended to repeal, abrogate, or impair any existing easements, covenants, or deed
restrictions. However, where this ordinance and another conflict or overlap, whichever imposes the more
stringent restrictions shall prevail.

SECTION F. INTERPRETATION.

In the interpretation and application of this ordinance, all provisions shall be:

June 2025 11
City of Statesville Flood Damage Prevention Ordinance

Page 35 of 213



(a) Considered as minimum requirements;
(b) Liberally construed in favor of the governing body; and
(c) Deemed neither to limit nor repeal any other powers granted under State statutes.

SECTION G. WARNING AND DISCLAIMER OF LIABILITY.

The degree of flood protection required by this ordinance is considered reasonable for regulatory purposes
and is based on scientific and engineering consideration. Larger floods can and will occur. Actual flood
heights may be increased by man-made or natural causes. This ordinance does not imply that land outside
the Special Flood Hazard Areas or uses permitted within such areas will be free from flooding or flood
damages. This ordinance shall not create liability on the part of the City of Statesville or by any officer or
employee thereof for any flood damages that result from reliance on this ordinance, or any administrative
decision lawfully made hereunder.

SECTIONH. PENALTIES FOR VIOLATION.

Violation of the provisions of this ordinance or failure to comply with any of its requirements, including
violation of conditions and safeguards established in connection with grants of variance or special
exceptions, shall constitute a Class 1 misdemeanor pursuant to NC G.S. § 143-215.58. Any person who
violates this ordinance or fails to comply with any of its requirements shall, upon conviction thereof, be
fined not more than $100.00 or imprisoned for not more than thirty (30) days, or both. Each day such
violation continues shall be considered a separate offense. Nothing herein contained shall prevent the
City of Statesville from taking such other lawful action as is necessary to prevent or remedy any violation.

ARTICLE 4. ADMINISTRATION.

SECTION A. DESIGNATION OF FLOODPLAIN ADMINISTRATOR.

The Stormwater Program Manager, hereinafter referred to as the “Floodplain Administrator”, is hereby
appointed to administer and implement the provisions of this ordinance. In instances where the Floodplain
Administrator receives assistance from others to complete tasks to administer and implement this
ordinance, the Floodplain Administrator shall be responsible for the coordination and community’s overall
compliance with the National Flood Insurance Program and the provisions of this ordinance.

SECTION B. FLOODPLAIN DEVELOPMENT APPLICATION, PERMIT AND CERTIFICATION
REQUIREMENTS.

(1) Application Requirements. Application for a Floodplain Development Permit shall be made to the
Floodplain Administrator prior to any development activities located within Special Flood Hazard
Areas. The following items shall be presented to the Floodplain Administrator to apply for a floodplain
development permit:

(a) A plot plan drawn to scale which shall include, but shall not be limited to, the following specific
details of the proposed floodplain development:

(i)  The nature, location, dimensions, and elevations of the area of development/disturbance;
existing and proposed structures, utility systems, grading/pavement areas, fill materials,

June 2025 12
City of Statesville Flood Damage Prevention Ordinance

Page 36 of 213



(b)

(e)
(f)

June 2025

(vi)

(vii)

storage areas, drainage facilities, and other development;

The boundary of the Special Flood Hazard Area as delineated on the FIRM or other flood
map as determined in Article 3, Section B, or a statement that the entire lot is within the
Special Flood Hazard Area;

Flood zone(s) designation of the proposed development area as determined on the FIRM
or other flood map as determined in Article 3, Section B;

The boundary of the floodway(s) or non-encroachment area(s) as determined in Article 3,
Section B;

The Base Flood Elevation (BFE) where provided as set forth in Article 3, Section B; Article
4, Section C; or Article 5, Section D;

The old and new location of any watercourse that will be altered or relocated as a result
of proposed development; and

The certification of the plot plan by a registered land surveyor or professional engineer.
Projects under one-hundred-fifty (150) square feet or $3,000 and not in a floodway or
non-encroachment zone, are exempt from this provision.

Proposed elevation, and method thereof, of all development within a Special Flood Hazard
Area including but not limited to:

(i)
(ii)

(iii)

Elevation in relation to NAVD 1988 of the proposed reference level (including basement)
of all structures;

Elevation in relation to NAVD 1988 to which any non-residential structure in Zones A, AE,
AH, AO, A99 will be floodproofed; and

Elevation in relation to NAVD 1988 to which any proposed utility systems will be elevated
or floodproofed.

If floodproofing, a Floodproofing Certificate (FEMA Form 086-0-34) with supporting data, an
operational plan, and an inspection and maintenance plan that include, but are not limited to,
installation, exercise, and maintenance of floodproofing measures.

A Foundation Plan, drawn to scale, which shall include details of the proposed foundation
system to ensure all provisions of this ordinance are met. These details include but are not
limited to:

The proposed method of elevation, if applicable (i.e., fill, solid foundation perimeter wall,
solid backfilled foundation, open foundation on columns/posts/piers/piles/shear walls);
and

Openings to facilitate automatic equalization of hydrostatic flood forces on walls in
accordance with Article 5, Section B(4)(d) when solid foundation perimeter walls are
used in Zones A, AE, AH, AO, A99.

Usage details of any enclosed areas below the lowest floor.

Plans and/or details for the protection of public utilities and facilities such as sewer, gas,

13

City of Statesville Flood Damage Prevention Ordinance

Page 37 of 213



electrical, and water systems to be located and constructed to minimize flood damage.

Certification that all other Local, State and Federal permits required prior to floodplain
development permit issuance have been received.

Documentation for placement of Recreational Vehicles and/or Temporary Structures, when
applicable, to ensure that the provisions of Article 5, Section B, subsections (6) and (7) of this
ordinance are met.

A description of proposed watercourse alteration or relocation, when applicable, including an
engineering report on the effects of the proposed project on the flood-carrying capacity of the
watercourse and the effects to properties located both upstream and downstream; and a map
(if not shown on plot plan) showing the location of the proposed watercourse alteration or
relocation.

(2) Permit Requirements. The Floodplain Development Permit shall include, but not be limited to:

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)
(e)
(f)

(9
(h)

(i)

A complete description of all the development to be permitted under the floodplain development
permit (e.g. house, garage, pool, septic, bulkhead, cabana, pier, bridge, mining, dredging,
filling, grading, paving, excavation or drilling operations, or storage of equipment or materials,
etc.).

The Special Flood Hazard Area determination for the proposed development in accordance
with available data specified in Article 3, Section B.

The Regulatory Flood Protection Elevation required for the reference level and all attendant
utilities.

The Regulatory Flood Protection Elevation required for the protection of all public utilities.

All certification submittal requirements with timelines.

A statement that no fill material or other development shall encroach into the floodway or non-
encroachment area of any watercourse unless the requirements of Article 5, Section F have
been met.

The flood openings requirements.

Limitations of below BFE enclosure uses (if applicable). (i.e., parking, building access and
limited storage only).

A statement, that all materials below BFE/RFPE must be flood resistant materials.

(3) Certification Requirements.

(a)

June 2025

Elevation Certificates

(i) An Elevation Certificate (FEMA Form 086-0-33) is required after the reference level is
established. Within seven (7) calendar days of establishment of the reference level
elevation, it shall be the duty of the permit holder to submit to the Floodplain Administrator
a certification of the elevation of the reference level, in relation to NAVD 1988. Any work
done within the seven (7) day calendar period and prior to submission of the certification

14

City of Statesville Flood Damage Prevention Ordinance

Page 38 of 213



(b)

June 2025

shall be at the permit holder’s risk. The Floodplain Administrator shall review the
certificate data submitted. Deficiencies detected by such review shall be corrected by the
permit holder immediately and prior to further work being permitted to proceed. Failure
to submit the certification or failure to make required corrections shall be cause to issue
a stop-work order for the project.

A final Finished Construction Elevation Certificate (FEMA Form 086-0-33) is required after
construction is completed and prior to Certificate of Compliance/Occupancy issuance. It
shall be the duty of the permit holder to submit to the Floodplain Administrator a
certification of final as-built construction of the elevation of the reference level and all
attendant utilities. The Floodplain Administrator shall review the certificate data submitted.
Deficiencies detected by such review shall be corrected by the permit holder immediately
and prior to Certificate of Compliance/Occupancy issuance. In some instances, another
certification may be required to certify corrected as-built construction. Failure to submit
the certification or failure to make required corrections shall be cause to withhold the
issuance of a Certificate of Compliance/Occupancy. The Finished Construction Elevation
Certificate certifier shall provide at least 2 photographs showing the front and rear of the
building taken within 90 days from the date of certification. The photographs must be
taken with views confirming the building description and diagram number provided in
Section A. To the extent possible, these photographs should show the entire building
including foundation. If the building has split-level or multi-level areas, provide at least 2
additional photographs showing side views of the building. In addition, when applicable,
provide a photograph of the foundation showing a representative example of the flood
openings or vents. All photographs must be in color and measure at least 3" x 3". Digital
photographs are acceptable.

Floodproofing Certificate

(i)

If non-residential floodproofing is used to meet the Regulatory Flood Protection Elevation
requirements, a Floodproofing Certificate (FEMA Form 086-0-34), with supporting data,
an operational plan, and an inspection and maintenance plan are required prior to the
actual start of any new construction. It shall be the duty of the permit holder to submit to
the Floodplain Administrator a certification of the floodproofed design elevation of the
reference level and all attendant utilities, in relation to NAVD 1988. Floodproofing
certification shall be prepared by or under the direct supervision of a professional engineer
or architect and certified by same. The Floodplain Administrator shall review the
certificate data, the operational plan, and the inspection and maintenance plan.
Deficiencies detected by such review shall be corrected by the applicant prior to permit
approval. Failure to submit the certification or failure to make required corrections shall
be cause to deny a Floodplain Development Permit. Failure to construct in accordance
with the certified design shall be cause to withhold the issuance of a Certificate of
Compliance/Occupancy.

A final Finished Construction Floodproofing Certificate (FEMA Form 086-0-34), with
supporting data, an operational plan, and an inspection and maintenance plan are
required prior to the issuance of a Certificate of Compliance/Occupancy. It shall be the
duty of the permit holder to submit to the Floodplain Administrator a certification of the
floodproofed design elevation of the reference level and all attendant utilities, in relation
to NAVD 1988. Floodproofing certificate shall be prepared by or under the direct
supervision of a professional engineer or architect and certified by same. The Floodplain
Administrator shall review the certificate data, the operational plan, and the inspection

15

City of Statesville Flood Damage Prevention Ordinance

Page 39 of 213



(c)

(e)

and maintenance plan. Deficiencies detected by such review shall be corrected by the
applicant prior to Certificate of Occupancy. Failure to submit the certification or failure to
make required corrections shall be cause to deny a Floodplain Development Permit.
Failure to construct in accordance with the certified design shall be cause to deny a
Certificate of Compliance/Occupancy.

If a manufactured home is placed within Zones A, AE, AH, AO, A99 and the elevation of the
chassis is more than 36 inches in height above grade, an engineered foundation certification is
required in accordance with the provisions of Article 5, Section B(3)(b).

If a watercourse is to be altered or relocated, a description of the extent of watercourse
alteration or relocation; a professional engineer’s certified report on the effects of the proposed
project on the flood-carrying capacity of the watercourse and the effects to properties located
both upstream and downstream; and a map showing the location of the proposed watercourse
alteration or relocation shall all be submitted by the permit applicant prior to issuance of a
floodplain development permit.

Certification Exemptions. The following structures, if located within Zones A, AE, AH, AO, A99,
are exempt from the elevation/floodproofing certification requirements specified in items (a) and
(b) of this subsection:

(i)  Recreational Vehicles meeting requirements of Article 5, Section B(6)(a);

(i)  Temporary Structures meeting requirements of Article 5, Section B(7); and

(iii) Accessory Structures that are one-hundred-fifty (150) square feet or less or $3,000 or
less and meeting requirements of Article 5, Section B(8).

(4) Determinations for existing buildings and structures.

For applications for building permits to improve buildings and structures, including alterations,
movement, enlargement, replacement, repair, change of occupancy, additions, rehabilitations,
renovations, substantial improvements, repairs of substantial damage, and any other improvement
of or work on such buildings and structures, the Floodplain Administrator, in coordination with the
Building Official, shall:

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

June 2025

Estimate the market value, or require the applicant to obtain an appraisal of the market value
prepared by a qualified independent appraiser, of the building or structure before the start of
construction of the proposed work; in the case of repair, the market value of the building or
structure shall be the market value before the damage occurred and before any repairs are
made;

Compare the cost to perform the improvement, the cost to repair a damaged building to its pre-
damaged condition, or the combined costs of improvements and repairs, if applicable, to the
market value of the building or structure;

Determine and document whether the proposed work constitutes substantial improvement or
repair of substantial damage; and

Notify the applicant if it is determined that the work constitutes substantial improvement or
repair of substantial damage and that compliance with the flood resistant construction

16

City of Statesville Flood Damage Prevention Ordinance

Page 40 of 213



requirements of the NC Building Code and this ordinance is required.

SECTION C. DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE FLOODPLAIN ADMINISTRATOR.

The Floodplain Administrator shall perform, but not be limited to, the following duties:

(1)

(2)

(12)

Review all floodplain development applications and issue permits for all proposed development within
Special Flood Hazard Areas to assure that the requirements of this ordinance have been satisfied.

Review all proposed development within Special Flood Hazard Areas to assure that all necessary
local, state and federal permits have been received, including Section 404 of the Federal Water
Pollution Control Act Amendments of 1972, 33 U.S.C. 1334.

Notify adjacent communities and the North Carolina Department of Public Safety, Division of
Emergency Management, State Coordinator for the National Flood Insurance Program prior to any
alteration or relocation of a watercourse, and submit evidence of such notification to the Federal
Emergency Management Agency (FEMA).

Assure that maintenance is provided within the altered or relocated portion of said watercourse so
that the flood-carrying capacity is maintained.

Prevent encroachments into floodways and non-encroachment areas unless the certification and
flood hazard reduction provisions of Article 5, Section F are met.

Obtain actual elevation (in relation to NAVD 1988) of the reference level (including basement) and
all attendant utilities of all new and substantially improved structures, in accordance with the
provisions of Article 4, Section B(3).

Obtain actual elevation (in relation to NAVD 1988) to which all new and substantially improved
structures and utilities have been floodproofed, in accordance with the provisions of Article 4, Section
B(3).

Obtain actual elevation (in relation to NAVD 1988) of all public utilities in accordance with the
provisions of Article 4, Section B(3).

When floodproofing is utilized for a particular structure, obtain certifications from a registered
professional engineer or architect in accordance with the provisions of Article 4, Section B(3) and
Article 5, Section B(2).

Where interpretation is needed as to the exact location of boundaries of the Special Flood Hazard
Areas, floodways, or non-encroachment areas (for example, where there appears to be a conflict
between a mapped boundary and actual field conditions), make the necessary interpretation. The
person contesting the location of the boundary shall be given a reasonable opportunity to appeal the
interpretation as provided in this article.

When BFE data has not been provided in accordance with the provisions of Article 3, Section B,
obtain, review, and reasonably utilize any BFE data, along with floodway data or non-encroachment
area data available from a federal, state, or other source, including data developed pursuant to Article
5, Section D(2)(c), in order to administer the provisions of this ordinance.

When BFE data is provided but no floodway or non-encroachment area data has been provided in

June 2025 17
City of Statesville Flood Damage Prevention Ordinance

Page 41 of 213



(13)

(14)

(15)

(16)

(21)

accordance with the provisions of Article 3, Section B, obtain, review, and reasonably utilize any
floodway data or non-encroachment area data available from a federal, state, or other source in order
to administer the provisions of this ordinance.

Permanently maintain all records that pertain to the administration of this ordinance and make these
records available for public inspection, recognizing that such information may be subject to the
Privacy Act of 1974, as amended.

Make on-site inspections of work in progress. As the work pursuant to a floodplain development
permit progresses, the Floodplain Administrator shall make as many inspections of the work as
may be necessary to ensure that the work is being done according to the provisions of the local
ordinance and the terms of the permit. In exercising this power, the Floodplain Administrator has a
right, upon presentation of proper credentials, to enter on any premises within the jurisdiction of the
community at any reasonable hour for the purposes of inspection or other enforcement action.

Issue stop-work orders as required. Whenever a building or part thereof is being constructed,
reconstructed, altered, or repaired in violation of this ordinance, the Floodplain Administrator may
order the work to be immediately stopped. The stop-work order shall be in writing and directed to
the person doing or in charge of the work. The stop-work order shall state the specific work to be
stopped, the specific reason(s) for the stoppage, and the condition(s) under which the work may be
resumed. Violation of a stop-work order constitutes a misdemeanor.

Revoke floodplain development permits as required. The Floodplain Administrator may revoke and
require the return of the floodplain development permit by notifying the permit holder in writing stating
the reason(s) for the revocation. Permits shall be revoked for any substantial departure from the
approved application, plans, and specifications; for refusal or failure to comply with the requirements
of State or local laws; or for false statements or misrepresentations made in securing the permit. Any
floodplain development permit mistakenly issued in violation of an applicable State or local law may
also be revoked.

Make periodic inspections throughout the Special Flood Hazard Areas within the jurisdiction of the
community. The Floodplain Administrator and each member of his or her inspections department
shall have a right, upon presentation of proper credentials, to enter on any premises within the
territorial jurisdiction of the department at any reasonable hour for the purposes of inspection or other
enforcement action.

Follow through with corrective procedures of Article 4, Section D.

Review, provide input, and make recommendations for variance requests.

Maintain a current map repository to include, but not limited to, historical and effective FIS Report,
historical and effective FIRM and other official flood maps and studies adopted in accordance with

the provisions of Article 3, Section B of this ordinance, including any revisions thereto including
Letters of Map Change, issued by FEMA. Notify State and FEMA of mapping needs.

Coordinate revisions to FIS reports and FIRMs, including Letters of Map Revision Based on Fill
(LOMR-Fs) and Letters of Map Revision (LOMRS).

(22) When the lowest floor and the lowest adjacent grade of a structure or the lowest ground elevation of

a parcel in a Special Flood Hazard Area is above the BFE, advise the property owner of the option to
apply for a Letter of Map Amendment (LOMA) from FEMA. Maintain a copy of the LOMA issued by

June 2025 18
City of Statesville Flood Damage Prevention Ordinance

Page 42 of 213



FEMA in the floodplain development permit file.

SECTIOND. CORRECTIVE PROCEDURES.

(1)

(2)

3)

(5)

Violations to be corrected: When the Floodplain Administrator finds violations of applicable state and
local laws; it shall be his or her duty to notify the owner or occupant of the building of the violation.
The owner or occupant shall immediately remedy each of the violations of law cited in such
notification.

Actions in Event of Failure to Take Corrective Action: If the owner of a building or property shall fail
to take prompt corrective action, the Floodplain Administrator shall give the owner written notice, by
certified or registered mail to the owner’s last known address or by personal service, stating:

(@) That the building or property is in violation of the floodplain management regulations;

(b) That a hearing will be held before the Floodplain Administrator at a designated place and time,
not later than ten (10) days after the date of the notice, at which time the owner shall be entitled
to be heard in person or by counsel and to present arguments and evidence pertaining to the
matter; and

(c) That following the hearing, the Floodplain Administrator may issue an order to alter, vacate, or
demolish the building; or to remove fill as applicable.

Order to Take Corrective Action: If, upon a hearing held pursuant to the notice prescribed above,
the Floodplain Administrator shall find that the building or development is in violation of the Flood
Damage Prevention Ordinance, he or she shall issue an order in writing to the owner, requiring the
owner to remedy the violation within a specified time period, not less than sixty (60) calendar days,
nor more than least One-hundred-eighty (180) calendar days. Where the Floodplain Administrator
finds that there is imminent danger to life or other property, he or she may order that corrective
action be taken in such lesser period as may be feasible.

Appeal: Any owner who has received an order to take corrective action may appeal the order to the
local elected governing body by giving notice of appeal in writing to the Floodplain Administrator and
the clerk within ten (10) days following issuance of the final order. In the absence of an appeal, the
order of the Floodplain Administrator shall be final. The local governing body shall hear an appeal
within a reasonable time and may affirm, modify and affirm, or revoke the order.

Failure to Comply with Order: If the owner of a building or property fails to comply with an order to
take corrective action for which no appeal has been made or fails to comply with an order of the
governing body following an appeal, the owner shall be guilty of a Class 1 misdemeanor pursuant to
NC G.S. § 143-215.58 and shall be punished at the discretion of the court.

SECTION E. VARIANCE PROCEDURES.

(1)

(2)

The Board of Adjustment as established by the City of Statesville, hereinafter referred to as the
“appeal board”, shall hear and decide requests for variances from the requirements of this ordinance.

Any person aggrieved by the decision of the appeal board may appeal such decision to the Court, as
provided in Chapter 7A of the North Carolina General Statutes.

June 2025 19
City of Statesville Flood Damage Prevention Ordinance

Page 43 of 213



(3) Variances may be issued for:

(a)

(c)

The repair or rehabilitation of historic structures upon the determination that the proposed repair
or rehabilitation will not preclude the structure's continued designation as a historic structure
and that the variance is the minimum necessary to preserve the historic character and design
of the structure;

Functionally dependent facilities if determined to meet the definition as stated in Article 2 of this
ordinance, provided provisions of Article 4, Section E(9)(b), (c), and (e) have been satisfied,
and such facilities are protected by methods that minimize flood damages during the base flood
and create no additional threats to public safety; or

Any other type of development provided it meets the requirements of this Section.

(4) In passing upon variances, the appeal board shall consider all technical evaluations, all relevant
factors, all standards specified in other sections of this ordinance, and:

(a)
(b)
(c)

(d)
(e)

(f)

(9
(h)

(i)
)

(k)

The danger that materials may be swept onto other lands to the injury of others;
The danger to life and property due to flooding or erosion damage;

The susceptibility of the proposed facility and its contents to flood damage and the effect of
such damage on the individual owner;

The importance of the services provided by the proposed facility to the community;

The necessity to the facility of a waterfront location as defined under Article 2 of this ordinance
as a functionally dependent facility, where applicable;

The availability of alternative locations, not subject to flooding or erosion damage, for the
proposed use;

The compatibility of the proposed use with existing and anticipated development;

The relationship of the proposed use to the comprehensive plan and floodplain management
program for that area;

The safety of access to the property in times of flood for ordinary and emergency vehicles;

The expected heights, velocity, duration, rate of rise, and sediment transport of the floodwaters
and the effects of wave action, if applicable, expected at the site; and

The costs of providing governmental services during and after flood conditions including
maintenance and repair of public utilities and facilities such as sewer, gas, electrical and water
systems, and streets and bridges.

(5) A written report addressing each of the above factors shall be submitted with the application for a
variance.

(6) Upon consideration of the factors listed above and the purposes of this ordinance, the appeal board
may attach such conditions to the granting of variances as it deems necessary to further the purposes

June 2025

20

City of Statesville Flood Damage Prevention Ordinance

Page 44 of 213



and objectives of this ordinance.

(7) Any applicant to whom a variance is granted shall be given written notice specifying the difference
between the BFE and the elevation to which the structure is to be built and that such construction
below the BFE increases risks to life and property, and that the issuance of a variance to construct a
structure below the BFE may result in increased premium rates for flood insurance up to $25 per
$100 of insurance coverage. Such notification shall be maintained with a record of all variance
actions, including justification for their issuance.

(8) The Floodplain Administrator shall maintain the records of all appeal actions and report any variances
to the FEMA and the State of North Carolina upon request.

(9) Conditions for Variances:

(a) Variances shall not be issued when the variance will make the structure in violation of other
federal, state, or local laws, regulations, or ordinances.

(b) Variances shall not be issued within any designated floodway or non-encroachment area if the
variance would result in any increase in flood levels during the base flood discharge.

(c) Variances shall only be issued upon a determination that the variance is the minimum
necessary, considering the flood hazard, to afford relief.

(d) Variances shall only be issued prior to development permit approval.
(e) Variances shall only be issued upon:
(i) A showing of good and sufficient cause;
(i) A determination that failure to grant the variance would result in exceptional hardship; and
(i) A determination that the granting of a variance will not result in increased flood heights,
additional threats to public safety, or extraordinary public expense, create nuisance,
cause fraud on or victimization of the public, or conflict with existing local laws or
ordinances.

(10) A variance may be issued for solid waste disposal facilities or sites, hazardous waste management
facilities, salvage yards, and chemical storage facilities that are located in Special Flood Hazard
Areas provided that all of the following conditions are met.

(@) The use serves a critical need in the community.

(b) No feasible location exists for the use outside the Special Flood Hazard Area.

(c) The reference level of any structure is elevated or floodproofed to at least the Regulatory Flood
Protection Elevation.

(d) The use complies with all other applicable federal, state and local laws.

(e) The City of Statesville has notified the Secretary of the North Carolina Department of Public
Safety of its intention to grant a variance at least thirty (30) calendar days prior to granting the

June 2025 21
City of Statesville Flood Damage Prevention Ordinance

Page 45 of 213



variance.

ARTICLE 5. PROVISIONS FOR FLOOD HAZARD REDUCTION.

SECTION A. GENERAL STANDARDS.

In all Special Flood Hazard Areas, the following provisions are required:

(1)

All new construction and substantial improvements shall be designed (or modified) and adequately
anchored to prevent flotation, collapse, and lateral movement of the structure.

(2) All new construction and substantial improvements shall be constructed with materials and utility

equipment resistant to flood damage in accordance with the FEMA Technical Bulletin 2, Flood
Damage-Resistant Materials Requirements.

(3) All new construction and substantial improvements shall be constructed by methods and practices that

(4)

(6)

(7)

(9)

minimize flood damages.

All new electrical, heating, ventilation, air-conditioning, plumbing, duct systems, and other building
utility systems, equipment, and service facilities must be located at or above the Regulatory Flood
Protection Elevation (RFPE) and/or specially designed to prevent water from entering or
accumulating within the components and installed to resist hydrostatic and hydrodynamic loads and
stresses, including the effects of buoyancy, during the occurrence of flooding to the design flood
elevation. Utility systems, equipment, and service facilities include, but are not limited to, HVAC
equipment, water softener units, bath/kitchen plumbing fixtures, ductwork, electric/gas meter
panels/boxes, utility/cable boxes, water heaters, fuel tanks, and electric outlets/switches.

(@) Replacements part of a substantial improvement must also meet the above provisions.

(b) Replacements that are for maintenance and not part of a substantial improvement, may be
installed at the original location provided the addition and/or improvements comply with the
standards for new construction consistent with the code and requirements for the original
structure.

All new and replacement water supply systems shall be designed to minimize or eliminate infiltration
of floodwaters into the system.

New and replacement sanitary sewage systems shall be designed to minimize or eliminate infiltration
of floodwaters into the systems and discharges from the systems into flood waters.

On-site waste disposal systems shall be located and constructed to avoid impairment to them or
contamination from them during flooding.

Nothing in this ordinance shall prevent the repair, reconstruction, or replacement of a building or
structure existing on the effective date of this ordinance and located totally or partially within the
floodway, non-encroachment area, or stream setback, provided there is no additional encroachment
below the Regulatory Flood Protection Elevation in the floodway, non-encroachment area, or stream
setback, and provided that such repair, reconstruction, or replacement meets all of the other
requirements of this ordinance.

New solid waste disposal facilities and sites, hazardous waste management facilities, salvage yards,

June 2025 22
City of Statesville Flood Damage Prevention Ordinance

Page 46 of 213



and chemical storage facilities shall not be permitted, except by variance as specified in Article 4,
Section E(10). A structure or tank for chemical or fuel storage incidental to an allowed use or to the
operation of a water treatment plant or wastewater treatment facility may be located in a Special
Flood Hazard Area only if the structure or tank is either elevated or floodproofed to at least the
Regulatory Flood Protection Elevation and certified in accordance with the provisions of Article 4,
Section B(3).

(10) All subdivision proposals and other development proposals shall be consistent with the need to
minimize flood damage.

(11) All subdivision proposals and other development proposals shall have public utilities and facilities
such as sewer, gas, electrical, and water systems located and constructed to minimize flood damage.

(12) All subdivision proposals and other development proposals shall have adequate drainage provided
to reduce exposure to flood hazards.

(13) All subdivision proposals and other development proposals shall have received all necessary permits
from those governmental agencies for which approval is required by federal or state law, including
Section 404 of the Federal Water Pollution Control Act Amendments of 1972, 33 U.S.C. 1334.

(14) When a structure is partially located in a Special Flood Hazard Area, the entire structure shall meet
the requirements for new construction and substantial improvements.

(15) When a structure is located in a flood hazard risk zone with multiple base flood elevations, the
provisions for the more restrictive flood hazard risk zone and the highest BFE shall apply.

(16) Buildings and structures that are located in more than one flood hazard area shall comply with the
provisions associated with the most restrictive flood hazard area.

(17) Fill is prohibited in the SFHA, including construction of buildings on fill. This includes not approving
Conditional Letters or Letters of Map Revision - Based on Fill (CLOMR-F or LOMR-F) for new
development. The following are exempt from this provision:

(a) Road and driveway construction, greenway construction;

(b) Utility infrastructure (to include but not limited to power, water, sewer, stormwater and
communication);

(c) Minor filling where needed to protect or restore natural floodplain functions, such as part of a
stream channel restoration project. To meet this exclusion, the project must utilize only the
minimum amount of fill necessary to ensure that the targeted area is restored to full ecological
functionality.

SECTION B. SPECIFIC STANDARDS.

In all Special Flood Hazard Areas where BFE data has been provided, as set forth in Article 3, Section B,
or Article 5, Section D, the following provisions, in addition to the provisions of Article 5, Section A, are
required:

(1) Residential Construction. New construction and substantial improvement of any residential structure
(including manufactured homes) shall have the reference level, including basement, elevated no
lower than the Regulatory Flood Protection Elevation (RFPE), as defined in Article 2 of this ordinance.

(2) Non-Residential Construction. New construction and substantial improvement of any commercial,

June 2025 23
City of Statesville Flood Damage Prevention Ordinance

Page 47 of 213



industrial, or other non-residential structure shall have the reference level, including basement,
elevated no lower than the Regulatory Flood Protection Elevation, as defined in Article 2 of this
ordinance. Structures located in Zones A, AE, AH, AO, A99 may be floodproofed to the Regulatory
Flood Protection Elevation (RFPE) in lieu of elevation provided that all areas of the structure, together
with attendant utility and sanitary facilities, below the Regulatory Flood Protection Elevation are
watertight with walls substantially impermeable to the passage of water, using structural components
having the capability of resisting hydrostatic and hydrodynamic loads and the effect of buoyancy. For
AO Zones, the floodproofing elevation shall be in accordance with Article 5, Section G(2). A
registered professional engineer or architect shall certify that the floodproofing standards of this
subsection are satisfied. Such certification shall be provided to the Floodplain Administrator as set
forth in Article 4, Section B(3), along with the operational plan and the inspection and maintenance
plan.

(3) Manufactured Homes.

(a) New and replacement manufactured homes shall be elevated so that the reference level of the
manufactured home is no lower than the Regulatory Flood Protection Elevation (RFPE), as
defined in Article 2 of this ordinance.

(b) Manufactured homes shall be securely anchored to an adequately anchored foundation to
resist flotation, collapse, and lateral movement, either by certified engineered foundation
system, or in accordance with the most current edition of the State of North Carolina
Regulations for Manufactured Homes adopted by the Commissioner of Insurance pursuant to
NCGS 143-143.15. Additionally, when the elevation would be met by an elevation of the
chassis thirty-six (36) inches or less above the grade at the site, the chassis shall be supported
by reinforced piers or engineered foundation. When the elevation of the chassis is above thirty-
six (36) inches in height, an engineering certification is required.

(c) Allenclosures or skirting below the lowest floor shall meet the requirements of Article 5, Section
B(4).

(d) An evacuation plan must be developed for evacuation of all residents of all new, substantially
improved or substantially damaged manufactured home parks or subdivisions located within
flood prone areas. This plan shall be filed with and approved by the Floodplain Administrator
and the local Emergency Management Coordinator.

(4) Elevated Buildings. Fully enclosed area, of new construction and substantially improved structures,
which is below the lowest floor:

(a) Shall not be designed or used for human habitation, but shall only be used for parking of
vehicles, building access, or limited storage of maintenance equipment used in connection with
the premises. Access to the enclosed area shall be the minimum necessary to allow for parking
of vehicles (garage door) or limited storage of maintenance equipment (standard exterior door),
or entry to the living area (stairway or elevator). The interior portion of such enclosed area shall
not be finished or partitioned into separate rooms, except to enclose storage areas;

(b) Shall not be temperature-controlled or conditioned;

(c) Shall be constructed entirely of flood resistant materials at least to the Regulatory Flood
Protection Elevation; and

(d) Shall include flood openings to automatically equalize hydrostatic flood forces on walls by
allowing for the entry and exit of floodwaters. To meet this requirement, the openings must

June 2025 24
City of Statesville Flood Damage Prevention Ordinance

Page 48 of 213



either be certified by a professional engineer or architect or meet or exceed the following
minimum design criteria:

A minimum of two flood openings on different sides of each enclosed area subject to
flooding;

The total net area of all flood openings must be at least one (1) square inch for each
square foot of enclosed area subject to flooding;

If a building has more than one enclosed area, each enclosed area must have flood
openings to allow floodwaters to automatically enter and exit;

The bottom of all required flood openings shall be no higher than one (1) foot above the
higher of the interior or exterior adjacent grade;

Flood openings may be equipped with screens, louvers, or other coverings or devices,
provided they permit the automatic flow of floodwaters in both directions; and

Enclosures made of flexible skirting are not considered enclosures for regulatory
purposes, and, therefore, do not require flood openings. Masonry or wood underpinning,
regardless of structural status, is considered an enclosure and requires flood openings as
outlined above.

(d) Fill/Grading

Fill is prohibited in the SFHA, including construction of buildings on fill. This includes not
approving Conditional Letters or Letters of Map Revision - Based on Fill (CLOMR-F or LOMR-
F) for new development. The following are exempt from this provision:

(i) Road and driveway construction, greenway construction;
(i) Utility infrastructure (to include but not limited to power, water, sewer, stormwater, and

communication);

(iii) Minor filling where needed to protect or restore natural floodplain functions, such as part

of a stream channel restoration project. To meet this exclusion, the project must utilize
only the minimum amount of fill necessary to ensure that the targeted area is restored
to full ecological functionality.

(5) Additions/Improvements.

(@)

(b)

June 2025

Additions and/or improvements to pre-FIRM structures when the addition and/or improvements
in combination with any interior modifications to the existing structure are:

(i)

(ii)

Not a substantial improvement, the addition and/or improvements must be designed to
minimize flood damages.

A substantial improvement, with modifications/rehabilitations/improvements to the
existing structure or the common wall is structurally modified more than installing a
doorway, both the existing structure and the addition must comply with the standards for
new construction.

Additions to pre-FIRM or post-FIRM structures that are a substantial improvement with no
modifications/rehabilitations/improvements to the existing structure other than a standard door
in the common wall, shall require only the addition to comply with the standards for new

25

City of Statesville Flood Damage Prevention Ordinance

Page 49 of 213



(6)

construction.

(c) Additions and/or improvements to post-FIRM structures when the addition and/or
improvements in combination with any interior modifications to the existing structure are:

(i)  Not a substantial improvement, the addition and/or improvements only must comply with
the standards for new construction consistent with the code and requirements for the
original structure.

(i) A substantial improvement, both the existing structure and the addition and/or
improvements must comply with the standards for new construction.

(d) Any combination of repair, reconstruction, rehabilitation, addition or improvement of a building
or structure taking place during a One (1) year period, the cumulative cost of which equals or
exceeds 50 percent of the market value of the structure before the improvement or repair is
started must comply with the standards for new construction. For each building or structure,
the One (1) year period begins on the date of the first improvement or repair of that building or
structure subsequent to the effective date of this ordinance. Substantial damage also means
flood-related damage sustained by a structure on two separate occasions during a 10-year
period for which the cost of repairs at the time of each such flood event, on the average, equals
or exceeds 25 percent of the market value of the structure before the damage occurred. If the
structure has sustained substantial damage, any repairs are considered substantial
improvement regardless of the actual repair work performed. The requirement does not,
however, include either:

(i)  Any project for improvement of a building required to correct existing health, sanitary or
safety code violations identified by the building official and that are the minimum
necessary to assume safe living conditions.

(i) Any alteration of a historic structure provided that the alteration will not preclude the
structure’s continued designation as a historic structure.

Recreational Vehicles. Recreational vehicles shall either:

(@) Temporary Placement
(i) Be on site for fewer than 180 consecutive days; or

(i) Be fully licensed and ready for highway use. (A recreational vehicle is ready for highway
use if it is on its wheels or jacking system, is attached to the site only by quick disconnect
type utilities, and has no permanently attached additions.)

(b) Permanent Placement. Recreational vehicles that do not meet the limitations of Temporary
Placement shall meet all the requirements for new construction.

Temporary Non-Residential Structures. Prior to the issuance of a floodplain development permit for
a temporary structure, the applicant must submit to the Floodplain Administrator a plan for the
removal of such structure(s) in the event of a hurricane, flash flood or other type of flood warning
notification. The following information shall be submitted in writing to the Floodplain Administrator
for review and written approval:

(a) A specified time period for which the temporary use will be permitted. Time specified may not

June 2025 26
City of Statesville Flood Damage Prevention Ordinance

Page 50 of 213



(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

exceed three (3) months, renewable up to one (1) year;

The name, address, and phone number of the individual responsible for the removal of the
temporary structure;

The time frame prior to the event at which a structure will be removed (i.e., minimum of 72 hours
before landfall of a hurricane or immediately upon flood warning notification);

A copy of the contract or other suitable instrument with the entity responsible for physical
removal of the structure; and

Designation, accompanied by documentation, of a location outside the Special Flood Hazard
Area, to which the temporary structure will be moved.

(8) Accessory Structures. When accessory structures (sheds, detached garages, etc.) are to be placed

within a Special Flood Hazard Area, the following criteria shall be met:

(a)

(b)
(c)
(d)

(e)

(f)

(9

Accessory structures shall not be used for human habitation (including working, sleeping, living,
cooking or restroom areas);

Accessory structures shall not be temperature-controlled;
Accessory structures shall be designed to have low flood damage potential;

Accessory structures shall be constructed and placed on the building site so as to offer the
minimum resistance to the flow of floodwaters;

Accessory structures shall be firmly anchored in accordance with the provisions of Article 5,
Section A(1);

All service facilities such as electrical shall be installed in accordance with the provisions of
Article 5, Section A(4); and

Flood openings to facilitate automatic equalization of hydrostatic flood forces shall be provided
below Regulatory Flood Protection Elevation in conformance with the provisions of Article 5,
Section B(4)(d).

An accessory structure with a footprint less than One-hundred-fifty (150) square feet or that is a
minimal investment of $3,000 or less and satisfies the criteria outlined above is not required to meet
the elevation or floodproofing standards of Article 5, Section B (2). Elevation or floodproofing
certifications are required for all other accessory structures in accordance with Article 4, Section B(3).

(9) Tanks. When gas and liquid storage tanks are to be placed within a Special Flood Hazard Area, the
following criteria shall be met:

(a)

(b)

June 2025

Underground tanks. Underground tanks in flood hazard areas shall be anchored to prevent
flotation, collapse or lateral movement resulting from hydrodynamic and hydrostatic loads
during conditions of the design flood, including the effects of buoyancy assuming the tank is
empty;

Above-ground tanks, elevated. Above-ground tanks in flood hazard areas shall be elevated to
or above the Regulatory Flood Protection Elevation on a supporting structure that is designed

27

City of Statesville Flood Damage Prevention Ordinance

Page 51 of 213



to prevent flotation, collapse or lateral movement during conditions of the design flood. Tank-
supporting structures shall meet the foundation requirements of the applicable flood hazard
area;

(c) Above-ground tanks, not elevated. Above-ground tanks that do not meet the elevation
requirements of Article 5, Section B (2) of this ordinance shall be permitted in flood hazard
areas provided the tanks are designed, constructed, installed, and anchored to resist all flood-
related and other loads, including the effects of buoyancy, during conditions of the design flood
and without release of contents in the floodwaters or infiltration by floodwaters into the tanks.
Tanks shall be designed, constructed, installed, and anchored to resist the potential buoyant
and other flood forces acting on an empty tank during design flood conditions.

(d) Tank inlets and vents. Tank inlets, fill openings, outlets and vents shall be:

(i) At or above the Regulatory Flood Protection Elevation or fitted with covers designed to
prevent the inflow of floodwater or outflow of the contents of the tanks during conditions
of the design flood; and

(i)  Anchored to prevent lateral movement resulting from hydrodynamic and hydrostatic loads,
including the effects of buoyancy, during conditions of the design flood.

(10) Other Development.

(a) Fences in regulated floodways and NEAs that have the potential to block the passage of
floodwaters, such as stockade fences and wire mesh fences, shall meet the limitations of Article
5, Section F of this ordinance.

(b) Retaining walls, sidewalks and driveways in regulated floodways and NEAs. Retaining walls
and sidewalks and driveways that involve the placement of fill in regulated floodways shall meet
the limitations of Article 5, Section F of this ordinance.

(c) Roads and watercourse crossings in regulated floodways and NEAs. Roads and watercourse
crossings, including roads, bridges, culverts, low-water crossings and similar means for
vehicles or pedestrians to travel from one side of a watercourse to the other side, that encroach
into regulated floodways shall meet the limitations of Article 5, Section F of this ordinance.

(d) Commercial storage facilities are not considered “limited storage” as noted in this ordinance,
and shall be protected to the Regulatory Flood Protection Elevation as required for commercial
structures.

SECTION C. RESERVED.

SECTIOND. STANDARDS FOR FLOODPLAINS WITHOUT ESTABLISHED BASE FLOOD
ELEVATIONS.

Within the Special Flood Hazard Areas designated as Approximate Zone A and established in Article 3,
Section B, where no BFE data has been provided by FEMA, the following provisions, in addition to the
provisions of Article 5, Section A, shall apply:

(1)  No encroachments, including fill, new construction, substantial improvements or new development
shall be permitted within a distance of twenty (20) feet each side from top of bank or five times the

June 2025 28
City of Statesville Flood Damage Prevention Ordinance

Page 52 of 213



width of the stream, whichever is greater, unless certification with supporting technical data by a
registered professional engineer is provided demonstrating that such encroachments shall not result
in any increase in flood levels during the occurrence of the base flood discharge.

(2) The BFE used in determining the Regulatory Flood Protection Elevation shall be determined based
on the following criteria:

(@) When BFE data is available from other sources, all new construction and substantial
improvements within such areas shall also comply with all applicable provisions of this
ordinance and shall be elevated or floodproofed in accordance with standards in Article 5,
Sections A and B.

(b) When floodway or non-encroachment data is available from a Federal, State, or other source,
all new construction and substantial improvements within floodway and non-encroachment
areas shall also comply with the requirements of Article 5, Sections B and F.

(c) All subdivision, manufactured home park and other development proposals shall provide BFE
data if development is greater than five (5) acres or has more than fifty (50) lots/manufactured
home sites. Such BFE data shall be adopted by reference in accordance with Article 3, Section
B and utilized in implementing this ordinance.

(d) When BFE data is not available from a Federal, State, or other source as outlined above, the
reference level shall be elevated or floodproofed (nonresidential) to or above the Regulatory
Flood Protection Elevation, as defined in Article 2. All other applicable provisions of Article 5,
Section B shall also apply.

SECTION E. STANDARDS FOR RIVERINE FLOODPLAINS WITH BASE FLOOD ELEVATIONS
BUT WITHOUT ESTABLISHED FLOODWAYS OR NON-ENCROACHMENT AREAS.

Along rivers and streams where BFE data is provided by FEMA or is available from another source but
neither floodway nor non-encroachment areas are identified for a Special Flood Hazard Area on the FIRM
or in the FIS report, the following requirements shall apply to all development within such areas:

(1) Standards of Article 5, Sections A and B; and

(2) Until a regulatory floodway or non-encroachment area is designated, no encroachments, including
fill, new construction, substantial improvements, or other development, shall be permitted unless
certification with supporting technical data by a registered professional engineer is provided
demonstrating that the cumulative effect of the proposed development, when combined with all other
existing and anticipated development, will not increase the water surface elevation of the base flood
more than one (1) foot at any point.

SECTION F. FLOODWAYS AND NON-ENCROACHMENT AREAS.

Areas designated as floodways or non-encroachment areas are located within the Special Flood Hazard
Areas established in Article 3, Section B. The floodways and non-encroachment areas are extremely
hazardous areas due to the velocity of floodwaters that have erosion potential and carry debris and

June 2025 29
City of Statesville Flood Damage Prevention Ordinance

Page 53 of 213



potential projectiles. The following provisions, in addition to standards outlined in Article 5, Sections A and
B, shall apply to all development within such areas:

(1) No encroachments, including fill, new construction, substantial improvements and other
developments shall be permitted unless:

(a) Itis demonstrated that the proposed encroachment would not result in any increase in the flood
levels during the occurrence of the base flood discharge, based on hydrologic and hydraulic
analyses performed in accordance with standard engineering practice and presented to the
Floodplain Administrator prior to issuance of floodplain development permit; or

(b) A Conditional Letter of Map Revision (CLOMR) has been approved by FEMA. A Letter of Map
Revision (LOMR) must also be obtained within six months of completion of the proposed
encroachment.

(2) If Article 5, Section F(1) is satisfied, all development shall comply with all applicable flood hazard
reduction provisions of this ordinance.

(3) Manufactured homes may be permitted provided the following provisions are met:
(a) The anchoring and the elevation standards of Article 5, Section B(3); and

(b) The encroachment standards of Article 5, Section F(1).

SECTION G. STANDARDS FOR AREAS OF SHALLOW FLOODING (ZONE AO).

Located within the Special Flood Hazard Areas established in Article 3, Section B, are areas designated
as shallow flooding areas. These areas have special flood hazards associated with base flood depths of
one (1) to three (3) feet where a clearly defined channel does not exist and where the path of flooding is
unpredictable and indeterminate. In addition to Article 5, Sections A and B, all new construction and
substantial improvements shall meet the following requirements:

(1) The reference level shall be elevated at least as high as the depth number specified on the Flood
Insurance Rate Map (FIRM), in feet, plus a freeboard of four (4) feet, above the highest adjacent
grade; or at least four (4) feet above the highest adjacent grade if no depth number is specified.

(2) Non-residential structures may, in lieu of elevation, be floodproofed to the same level as required in
Article 5, Section G (1) so that the structure, together with attendant utility and sanitary facilities,
below that level shall be watertight with walls substantially impermeable to the passage of water and
with structural components having the capability of resisting hydrostatic and hydrodynamic loads and
effects of buoyancy. Certification is required in accordance with Article 4, Section B(3) and Article 5,
Section B(2).

(3) Adequate drainage paths shall be provided around structures on slopes, to guide floodwaters around
and away from proposed structures.

SECTIONH. STANDARDS FOR AREAS OF SHALLOW FLOODING (ZONE AH).

Located within the Special Flood Hazard Areas established in Article 3, Section B, are areas designated
as shallow flooding areas. These areas are subject to inundation by 1-percent-annual-chance shallow

June 2025 30
City of Statesville Flood Damage Prevention Ordinance

Page 54 of 213



flooding (usually areas of ponding) where average depths are one (1) to three (3) feet. Base Flood
Elevations are derived from detailed hydraulic analyses are shown in this zone. In addition to Article 5,
Sections A and B, all new construction and substantial improvements shall meet the following
requirements:

(1) Adequate drainage paths shall be provided around structures on slopes, to guide floodwaters around
and away from proposed structures.

ARTICLE 6. LEGAL STATUS PROVISIONS.

SECTION A. EFFECT ON RIGHTS AND LIABILITIES UNDER THE EXISTING FLOOD DAMAGE
PREVENTION ORDINANCE.

This ordinance in part comes forward by re-enactment of some of the provisions of the Flood Damage
Prevention Ordinance enacted September 17, 1979, as amended, and it is not the intention to repeal but
rather to re-enact and continue to enforce without interruption of such existing provisions, so that all rights
and liabilities that have accrued thereunder are reserved and may be enforced. The enactment of this
ordinance shall not affect any action, suit or proceeding instituted or pending. All provisions of the Flood
Damage Prevention Ordinance of the City of Statesville enacted on September 17, 1979, as amended,
which are not reenacted herein are repealed.

The date of the initial Flood Damage Prevention Ordinance for Iredell County is April 7, 1987.

SECTION B. EFFECT UPON OUTSTANDING FLOODPLAIN DEVELOPMENT PERMITS.

Nothing herein contained shall require any change in the plans, construction, size, or designated use of
any development or any part thereof for which a floodplain development permit has been granted by the
Floodplain Administrator or his or her authorized agents before the time of passage of this ordinance;
provided, however, that when construction is not begun under such outstanding permit within a period of
six (6) months subsequent to the date of issuance of the outstanding permit, construction or use shall be
in conformity with the provisions of this ordinance.

SECTION C. SEVERABILITY.

If any section, clause, sentence, or phrase of the Ordinance is held to be invalid or unconstitutional by any
court of competent jurisdiction, then said holding shall in no way affect the validity of the remaining portions
of this Ordinance.

SECTION D. EFFECTIVE DATE.

This ordinance shall become effective upon adoption.

SECTION E. ADOPTION CERTIFICATION.

WITNESS my hand and the official seal of , this the day of ,
2025.

June 2025 31
City of Statesville Flood Damage Prevention Ordinance

Page 55 of 213



(signature)

This ordinance was introduced for first reading by Council member , seconded
by Council member , and carried on the day of , 2025.
AYES:

NAYS:

The second and final reading of this ordinance was heard on the day of ,
2025, and upon motion of Council member , seconded by Council member

, and unanimously carried, was adopted.

AYES:

NAYS:

This ordinance is to be in full force and effect from and after the day of , 2025.

CITY OF STATESVILLE

Constantine H. Kutteh, Mayor

APPROVED AS TO FORM

ATTEST: Leah Gaines Messick, City Attorney

Emily Kurfees, City Clerk

(Seal)

June 2025 32
City of Statesville Flood Damage Prevention Ordinance

Page 56 of 213



CITY COUNCIL ACTION REQUEST

TO: Ron Smith, City Manager

FROM: Matt Kirkendall, Senior Planner

DATE: 9/4/2025 4:44 PM

ACTION NEEDED ON: September 15, 2025

(Date of Council Meeting)

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED:

Consider passing the second reading of an annexation ordinance AX25-06 2110 E. Greenbriar
Road.

1. Summary of Information:
This property is approximately 1.556 acres located at 2110 E Greenbriar Road. This parcel is located
within the City’s ETJ and is adjacent to the City Limits. This parcel is zoned RA (Residential
Agricultural) Zoning District and rezoning is not required. The applicant requests voluntary
annexation to utilize City water.

2. Previous Council or Relevant Actions:
City Council held the public hearing on August 18, and no members from the public came to speak.
The first reading passed unanimously.

3. Strategic Initiatives Supported/Impacted:
Developing Our City: N/A
Connecting Our City: N/A
Connecting Our Communities: Promote the development of a range of housing types throughout
our community and housing stability for residents.
Strategic Plan Values: We value and encourage Opportunity

The property is in the Tier 1 Growth Area of the 2045 LDP and is adjacent to the city limits.

4. Budget/Funding Implications:
The current tax value of the parcel is $158,640. City of Statesville water is available.

5. Consequences for Not Acting:
Without annexation the city would not collect property taxes. Without annexation, the property owner
could still access city water at 2%2 times the rate with City Council approval.

6. Department Recommendation:
The department recommends passing the second reading of this annexation request.

7. Manager Comments:
Recommend passing the second reading.

Page 57 of 213



Next Steps:
If passed, the annexation would be effective on September 30th.

. Attachments:

1. 2. Ordinance_Annexation_AX25-06 2110 E Greenbriar Road

Page 58 of 213



ORDINANCE NO.

AN ORDINANCE TO EXTEND THE CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE CITY OF STATESVILLE,
NORTH CAROLINA

Case No. AX25-06 2110 E Greenbriar Road
Parcel # 4754-21-4533

WHEREAS, the Statesville City Council has petitioned under G.S. 160A-31, to annex the
area described below; and

WHEREAS, the Statesville City Council has by resolution directed the Clerk to investigate
the sufficiency of the petition; and

WHEREAS, the City Clerk has certified the sufficiency of said petition and a public hearing
on the question of this annexation was held at Statesville City Hall at 6:00 o’clock p.m. on the 18™
day of August 2025 after due notice by publication on the 7" day of August 2025; and

WHEREAS, the Statesville City Council finds that the petition meets the requirements of
G.S. 160A-31:

WHEREAS, the Statesville City Council further finds that the petition has been signed by
all the owners of real property in the area who are required by law to sign; and

WHEREAS, the Statesville City Council further finds that the petition is otherwise valid,
and that the public health, safety, and welfare of the City and of the area proposed for annexation
will be best served by annexing the area described;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY the Statesville City Council of the City of
Statesville, North Carolina that:

Section 1. By virtue of the authority granted by G.S. 160A-31, the following described
contiguous territory is hereby annexed and made part of the City of Statesville, as of September
30, 2025, at 11:59 p.m.

Description

BEGINNING at an iron pin located in the southern line of the Rainey Patterson Heirs property as
set out in deed recorded in Book 335, at Page 252, Iredell County Registry,

said iron pin also being the northeast corner of Ernest Waddell Heirs property as set out

in deed recorded in Book 354, at Page 284, Iredell County Registry, and continuing thence with
said southern line of Patterson Heirs, North 77° 36’ 05” East 124.92 feet to an iron pin, the
southeast corner of Dwight F. Martin as set out in deed recorded in Book 298, at Page 443, Iredell
County Registry; thence South 10° 28’ 15” East 38.66 feet to an iron rod; thence North 79° 50’
05” East 66.30 feet to iron rod; thence South 04° 16’ 15” West 348.60 feet to an iron rod located
in Sherrill Industrial Park’s northern line; thence with Sherrill Industrial Park’s northern line, North
88° 02’ 55" West 191.92 feet to an iron rod, Kenneth L. Grant’s southeast corner thence with
Grant’s eastern line, North 03° 56’ 35” East 341.40 feet to an iron pin, the point and place of
Beginning, containing 1.556 acres, more or less, according to a survey by Hildebran Surveying

Page 59 of 213



Co., entitled “Toua D. Khang and wife, Shoua H. Khang, Statesville Outside Township, Iredell
County, NC”, dated March 2, 1998.

Section 2. Upon and after September 30, 2025, at 11:59 p.m., the above-described
territory and its citizens and property shall be subject to all debts, laws, ordinances, and
regulations in force in the City of Statesville and shall be entitled to the same privileges and
benefits as other parts of the City of Statesville. Said territory shall be subject to municipal taxes
according to G.S. 160A-31.

Section 3. The Mayor of the City of Statesville shall cause to be recorded in the office of
the Register of Deeds of Iredell County, and in the office of the Secretary of State at Raleigh,
North Carolina, an accurate map of the annexed territory, described in Section 1 above, together
with a duly certified copy of this ordinance. Such a map shall also be delivered to the Iredell
County Board of Elections, as required by G.S. 163-288.1.

The Ordinance was introduced by a first reading by Councilmember
, seconded by Councilmember , and carried on
the 18" day of August, 2025.

AYES:
NAYES:

The second and final reading of this ordinance was heard on the 15" day of September
2025 and upon motion of Councilmember , seconded by
Councilmember , and unanimously carried, was adopted.
AYES:
NAYES:

The Ordinance to be in full force and effect from and after the 30" day of September 2025
at 11:59 p.m.

City of Statesville

MAYOR

ATTEST:

City Clerk

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

City Attorney

Page 60 of 213



CITY COUNCIL ACTION REQUEST

TO: Ron Smith, City Manager

FROM: Matthew Kirkendall, Senior Planner
DATE: 9/4/2025 5:19 PM

ACTION NEEDED ON: September 15, 2025

(Date of Council Meeting)

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED:

Consider passing a resolution directing the City Clerk to investigate a petition of annexation,
AX25-05 407 and 417 Central Drive, receive the City Clerk’s Certificate of Sufficiency, and
consider passing a resolution fixing a date of September 15, 2025, for a public hearing for the
petition of annexation

1. Summary of Information:
Mr. Phil Barry, on behalf of the property owner, Palmetto Haven Holdings, is requesting annexation
for these two properties. These properties are approximately 1.14 acres located at 407 and 417
Central Drive (see Location Map, Aerial Photo and Site Photo). These parcels are located within the
City’s ETJ and are adjacent to the City Limits. These parcels are zoned R-20 (Suburban Residential)
Zoning District and rezoning is not required. The applicant requests voluntary annexation to utilize
City sewer (see current zoning and utilities map).

2. Previous Council or Relevant Actions:
N/A

3. Strategic Initiatives Supported/Impacted:
Developing Our City: N/A
Connecting Our City: N/A
Connecting Our Communities: Promote the development of a range of housing types throughout
our community and housing stability for residents.
Strategic Plan Values: We value and encourage Opportunity

The properties are in the Tier 1 Growth Area of the 2045 Land Development Plan, in the ETJ, and
are adjacent to city limits.

4. Budget/Funding Implications:
The current tax value of the parcels is $12,000, the tax value at full buildout is still to be determined.
City of Statesville sewer is available and Statesville Public Power will serve these sites. Water is not
available.

5. Consequences for Not Acting:

Without annexation the city would not collect property taxes. Without annexation, the property
owner(s) could still access city sewer at 2'% times the rate with City Council approval.

Page 61 of 213



Department Recommendation:
The department recommends passing the resolutions and setting a date of October 6, 2025, for a
public hearing on this annexation request.

Manager Comments:
Concur with the department recommendation.

Next Steps:
Advertise for the public hearing.

. Attachments:

1. Packet Maps AX25-05 407 417 Central Drive

2. Resolution_Clerk Investigation_-Contiguous_AX25-05 407 and 417 Central Drive
3. Certificate of Sufficiency_Annexation_AX25-05 407 and 417 Central Drive

4. Resolution to Set Public Hearing_AX25-05 407 and 417 Central Drive

Page 62 of 213



City of Statesville
Planning Department

AX25-05 407 and 417 Central Dr,
4724-76-5654 and 4724-76-5543

0
1

[ —ee—" Y

W E

S

1,250 2.500
:18.750

CITY of N/

NORTH CAROLINA

PACER LN

W@ TVEINAD

GREE, NCREg TLN

llllllrllllllll

1S ATIOH

~

Page 63 of 213

Location Map — AX25-05 407 and 417 Central Drive



Pacer Ln

Page 64 of 213

o T——

W agenusd.

Aerial Photo — AX25-05 407 and 417 Central Drive




™
~—
- N
Y—
o
Yol
©
(]
(@]
©
o

Site Photo — AX25-05 407 and 417 Central Drive




City of Statesville
Planning Department

AX25-05 407 and 417 Central Dr.
4724-76-5654 and 4724-76-5543

R-20

PACER LN

) Feet
0 1,250 2,500
1:18.750

WA TVEINAD

)

CITY of NI/

NORTH CAROLINA

15 ATI0H

|

LI

Current Zoning and Utilities — AX25-05 407 and 417 Central Drive

Page 66 of 213



RESOLUTION

A RESOLUTION DIRECTING THE CLERK TO
INVESTIGATE A PETITION RECEIVED UNDER G.S. 160A-31

Case No. AX25-05 407 and 417 Central Drive
Parcel #s 4724-76-5654 and 4724-76-5543

WHEREAS, a petition requesting annexation of the area described in said petition
has been received on July 11, 2025, by the City Council; and

WHEREAS, G. S. 160A-31 provides that the sufficiency of the petition shall be
investigated by the City Clerk before further annexation proceedings may take place; and

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Statesville deems it advisable to proceed
and respond to the request for annexation.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Statesville:
That the City Clerk is hereby directed to investigate the sufficiency of the above

described petition and to certify as soon as possible to the City Council the results of her
investigation.

Adopted this 15" day of September 2025.

S-E-A-L
CITY OF STATESVILLE
By:
Mayor
ATTEST:
City Clerk

Page 67 of 213



CERTIFICATE OF SUFFICIENCY

Case No. AX25-05 407 and 417 Central Drive
Parcel #s 4724-76-5654 and 4724-76-5543

TO THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF STATESVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA:

I, Emily Kurfees, City Clerk, do hereby certify that | have investigated the petition
attached hereto and have found that said petition is signed by all owners of real property
lying in the area described therein, in accordance with G.S. 160A-31.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, | have hereunto set my hand and affixed the seal of the
City of Statesville, this 15" day of September 2025.

SEAL

Emily Kurfees, City Clerk

Page 68 of 213



RESOLUTION

RESOLUTION FIXING THE DATE OF A PUBLIC HEARING ON THE QUESTION OF
ANNEXATION PURSUANT TO G.S. 160A-31

Case No. AX25-05 407 and 417 Central Drive
Parcel #s 4724-76-5654 and 4724-76-5543

WHEREAS, a petition requesting annexation of the contiguous area described herein has
been received; and

WHEREAS, the City Council has by resolution directed the City Clerk to investigate the
sufficiency of said petition; and

WHEREAS, certification by the City Clerk as to the sufficiency of said petition has been
made;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Statesville,
North Carolina

Section 1. That a public hearing on the question of annexation of the contiguous area
described herein will be held in the Council Chambers of the Statesville City Hall at 6:00 o’clock
p.m. on the 6™ day of October 2025.

Section 2. The area proposed for annexation is described as follows:

Lying and being in Statesville outside Township, Iredell County, North Carolina and
being all of Lots 10 and 11 Sherrill Estates Phase Il recorded in plat book 28 page 47 and being
more particularly described as follows:

Beginning at a point located on the eastern right-of-way of Central Drive; point being the
common corner of Lot 11 and 12 Sherrill Estates Phase Il (recorded in plat book 28 page 47);
thence with said right-of-way three (3) calls as follows: 1) N. 01-13-28 W. 110.00’ to a point
2) N. 01-13-28 W. 68.56’ to a point 3) with a circular curve to the left having a radius of 50.00°
and an arc length of 48.63’ (chord bearing N. 30-54-15 E. 46.74’ to a point; thence with the
common line of Lot 9 S. 86-57-24 E. 205.30’ to a point; thence with the common line of GCM
Holdings LLC property (recorded in deed book 2433 page 2265) three (3) calls as follows:

1) S. 01-39-09 E. 110.06 to a point 2) S. 01-39-09 E. 29.72’ to a point 3) S. 05-56-37 W. 80.18’
to a point; thence with the common line of Lot 12 N. 86-57-24 W. 221.24’ to the Point and Place
of Beginning containing 1.13 acres more or less according to a survey by Don Allen &
Associates PA dated February 12, 2025.

Section 3. Notice of said public hearing shall be published in the Statesville Record
and Landmark, a newspaper having general circulation in the City of Statesville, at least 10 days
prior to the date of the public hearing.

Adopted this 15" day of September 2025.
CITY OF STATESVILLE

By:

Mayor
ATTEST:

Page 69 of 213



City Clerk

Page 70 of 213



CITY COUNCIL ACTION REQUEST

TO: Ron Smith, City Manager

FROM: Matthew Kirkendall, Senior Planner
DATE: 9/8/2025 8:23 AM

ACTION NEEDED ON: September 15, 2025

(Date of Council Meeting)

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED:

Consider passing a resolution directing the City Clerk to investigate a petition of annexation,
AX25-08 Compass Data Centers for parcels along Stamey Farm Road and Hickory Hwy, receive
the City Clerk’s Certificate of Sufficiency, and consider passing a resolution fixing a date of
September 15, 2025, for a public hearing for the petition of annexation.

Summary of Information:

These properties are approximately 350 acres that are located along Stamey Farm Road and Hickory
Highway (see Location Map, Aerial Photo and Site Photo). These parcels are currently requesting
rezoning to LI CZ (Light Industrial Conditional Zoning) District, and if approved, will need to be
annexed. The applicant requests voluntary annexation to utilize City sewer (see current zoning and
utilities map).

Previous Council or Relevant Actions:
City Council will hear the public hearing and consider passing the first reading of the conditional
rezoning (ZC25-13) on this meeting’s agenda, contingent upon annexation (see Concept Plan).

Strategic Initiatives Supported/impacted:

Developing Our City: N/A

Connecting Our City: Invest in services and critical public infrastructure to align with land use plan
goals and accommodate future growth citywide.

Connecting Our Communities: N/A

Strategic Plan Values: N/A

These properties are in the Tier 2 Growth Area and the Airport/ I-40 Focus Area of the 2045 Land
Development Plan.

Budget/Funding Implications:

The current tax value of the parcels is $1,120,000. City of Statesville sewer is available, the
estimated value at full buildout is $100,000,000.

Consequences for Not Acting:

Without annexation the city would not collect property taxes. Without annexation, the property owner
could still access city sewer at 274 times the inside rate with City Council approval.

Department Recommendation:

Page 71 of 213



The department recommends passing the resolutions to set a date of October 6, 2025, for a public
hearing on this annexation request.

Manager Comments:
Recommend for approval.

Next Steps:
Advertise for the public hearing.

. Attachments:

1. Packet Maps AX25-08 Compass Data Centers

2. Concept Plan_2025.08.18 Compass Revised

3. Resolution_Clerk Investigation_Non-Contiguous_AX25-08 Compass Data Center
4. Certificate of Sufficiency_Annexation_AX25-08 Compass Data Center

5. Resolution to Set Public Hearing_AX25-08 Compass Data Centers

Page 72 of 213



City of Statesville
Planning Department

AX25-08 Compass Data Centers
Stamey Farm Road
4713-29-5198, 4713-39-0218,
4714-23-3766, 4714-53-2608,
4714-34-8407, 4714-44-4518,
4714-44-5207, and portion of
4714-31-8718

CITY of W\\W/

NORTH CAROLINA

Legend

Existing City Limit
) subject Parcels

T [ Y

BETHL Epppy RD

Location Map — AX25-08 Compass Data Centers

Page 73 of 213



™
<~
N
Y—
o
<
N~
()
(@]
©
o

Aerial Photo - AX25-08 Compass Data Centers




™
<~
N
Y—
o
Yo
N
()
(@]
©
o

Site Photo - AX25-08 Compass Data Centers




City of Statesville
Planning Department

AX25-08 Compass Data Centers
Stamey Farm Road
4713-29-5198, 4713-39-0218,
4714-23-3766, 4714-53-2608,
4714-34-8407, 4714-44-4518,
4714-44-5207, and portion of
4714-31-8718

_/._ M
W E -HD
S a
Legend
— Sewer_Lines
Water_Lines > _

) subject Parcels

CITY of \\//

NORTH CAROLINA m >
= —

Current Zoning and Utilities Map — AX25-08 Compass Data Centers

Page 76 of 213



7:\32304\32304.0001 \ENGINEERING\DRAWINGS\EXHIBITS\2025-07-14 REZONING EXHIBITS\32304.0001 - SITE PLAN EXHIBIT.DWG - Aug 18, 2025 - 6:24 PM

/ ; |
]
’ ELLENBURG JOSEPH
A+BETTY
) ! L PIN: 4714-35-9232.00 , !
J/ i DB 682 PG 149 /
/ / PENSKE TRUCK LEASING PARCEL 7 )
1 PIN: 4714-35-6143.000 PIN: 4714445418.000 ’ I
2 / | B eeeIre g STAMEY PARM RO / PIN'471444P5A22§:5I(-)(6) '
FALLS PARK LLC STAMEY LAND CO PROPERTY BOUNDARY | : -
/ - PIN: 4714-25-8181.000 PARCEL 5 COUNTY ZONING: HB ‘ STAMEY FARM RD - o
~ DB 3028 PG 414 I PIN: 4714348407.000 STAMEY LAND CO T — .
! g o \\ | PUREBRED DR COUNTY ZONING: HB T
o0& N /‘/ STAMEY LAND COMPANY : N
. / Jo b ~_ ) COUNTY ZONING: RA — | \ .
- = L m b - - & \
- / s >/ RINK MEDIA, LLC /—@/ N 29N .
T~ ~~ ! & & - PIN: 4714-34-5452.00 « — X -7 _ . R\ . 4//0 | >
! o\\ v N2 _— DB 1862 PG 33 - \‘//////”"’//X BN % %505 . ! \
/ ] OQ \\///\\v,? /// //// //_-/ X - —_—— = = = — % O 7)<O/O/O \\
/ oY < B — - % - = - A % 2% 0
® Yy . g — == N\ ) SIS
OQ 5 g‘) ) % Q / \/\/ — X /___/__ﬁ’// - | N\ ”\ N\ 6@ 77 //‘V< \\ !
| 99 o P & - P == \ \<°A 2l So PRIMARY ACCESS DRIVE AN
\/(‘g(o // Q%(\?Q / A - (/L,/’X’ \\ . G/(QO\S/ oA
m ™ © -7 % 9
/ Emo NS // o \ \ %0, € FUTURE 80FT R.O.W.
! ey~ TH = -\ AN o \ ot STAMEY FARM ROAD
/ RN & . e = - N ELEXT GROUP REAL ESTATE
s / _— *///6/ = \ \ HOLDINGS LLC
! 9 / _- ‘\:\/A, < A = iy N\ . PIN: 4714-44-9591.000
/ h / %‘Y?S \1}3\3‘6 ) /\ SN\ DB 2682 PG 1215 ! \\
| - \ﬂ%ﬁ‘;\:\%ﬁ‘ N — e \ P /\\ \N 30FT FRONT SETBiACK .
HARVEST BAPTIST CHURCH I - = = <
OF STATESVILLE INC. _— 3‘\,0‘5“ P, =~ GRAVEL SUBSTATION DRIVE SUBSTATION R , N \ GUARDHOUSE 1 N
-7 — // - = -,
P‘N:Dg“fé‘f%??;%o /\// = /%7/ GRAVEL EQUIPMENT YARD, TYP. +750FT x 450FT \/ NN :ﬁ?‘%z?’%% 000
~ P N : .
. gEANINE OUTDOOR EQUIPMENT, TYP. EXISTING N N 259 STAMEY FARM RD
- HOUSE N R 4 STAMEY FARMS LLP |
y o ! \ COUNTY ZONING: RA [
_ v 8FT STREET YARD BUFFER SN X ! \
¢ o / S 1 SN C N\ P
25FT BUFFER, ye _ / \ 3 2%\ N
\ EA.SIDE 74 | N \\ G 70%& . AN
. N\ /! NS N N
Y 4 /‘4 RN RN EXISTING FARM HOUSE >
L / = = - - \ \ \\ % 95 0@6\ N \\
< // . . . . . .. L] o a ] a - - > \’\/ ) \C /0@/7@7/ &)\@ >\ \\
- a a S Y9 O
T g STREAM // Vs - o ] - B & .. . . . . . . I°D B = o N F N . %%, . %
_— =7, 7 e - . e _a s A ._ . . . . . . \ N ‘ EXISTING BUILDINGS \
\ / /) oge a5 H / \ N & ACCESS DRIVES .
S - |/ PROPERTY / L] \ \\ N , . >
- [ BOUNDARY / > S S
— — \ \ / // - _ /s//
7 \ j —— 05,
~ \ \ \ / N\~ — 7= N . 7. _ 0, 8
- N 7
VA \ | Py NN 0@;/ g9,
Vo \ | [ /| EXISTING FARM POND Y N . %@%\
a o AN N P }é\
\ 1 - J o = g \ ~ ¢ 9%
— N =2 e R F 1P
! a Jd 3 < N
PARCEL 3 AN \\ I = = a o o - . . . . . . . ) L] o - _ A\ AN S AN A
PIN: 4714233766.000 T ‘\ L N / / POND #2 \ a a a o - . . . . - 2 & \%
189 PUREBRED DR y ( N = = = - - . \ « N
STAMEY PAMELA P LIV TR N /) ) = \ e N
COUNTY ZONING: RA \ N > e
T — N = N £
\ \’ — N g S /
VY S8 \ ' ~ \ 7 3
—_ —r ~ ) —— % o
A\ | S o .- -- 5& \ 7 s<>
{ \ / / [N [] .- -l L/ SAMES J. MUNDAY AND WIFE
o .MU
CONTINUATION OF \ A\ \ \ / \ (] O~ u .- 0] v O@ HP‘ANZ.E:;E;B}!‘G%D&? ,
BACK CREEK NW ’ \ A\ LOADING DOCK, TYP. o (] L U .- DB 2166 PG 703 /
o\ \ WITH TRASH COMPACTOR i 0 ’ LN [} (. o ,
’ \ \ - [ ] . [] .- - ,
\ O\ \ o m - . . ] B /
I \ O\ \ N U - ° (0] [} L] s 30FT LANDSCAPE BUFFER
o - L] a - (-] r
I \ A N \ m’ . e (] m /
’ v\ ~ . L m o a 20FT ADDITIONAL BUFFER
| 8 Ll (5] m LR SEE REZONING CONDITIONS
a
| 30FT LANDSCAPE BUFFER \ e =k 5 T = (5] e
— (] . (] L] (0] a = ’
e \ 1 L} -. y L] a — (] ’ s ’ /
D ., . L =F =, . = -
EXISTING PAVILION — v/ (] LR D ] m s =
WHISKEY THROTTLE NC, LLC V% ? [ s ] (]
PIN: 4714-12-6405.000 [y . ] .- -' o . —_
DB 3010 PG 939 \ ] (. [} .- -l —_
PB 35 PG I9 0
EXISTING FARM POND [ . L [ ’ m’ , L . EASTING o
| — a [-] .
B — )| L. ' | N [ ROAD,
/ s m LR . | TYP.
A - ' __a L (] LR .
v, - ] L .- -
/ i/ - . a -
\\ a -] 2 P - - L o <]
\ - a ] - (] a
v " . m' ' g | BN ' ALFORD FARM AND
/ ' g a (7] 0 0 (] TIMBER, LLC
| A\ 4 ] . o - ] m s PIN: 4714-63-9570.00
25FT BUFFER, \ , ] . :
| EA.SDE — . =, ] m '-. . .-. DB 2768 PG 16l
a a
| (] a
N QN O m ", Lo m
’ - | ] o 0 a .-
| / / " g ' l- [} U !
| ( . (] L L .- -'
[ ~ ! -- [} 0 U (]
| \ . [ ] m' . Ll 30FT LANDSCAPE BUFFER
, , \ ~ (-] a x - o ”/
- ) [] m ] ' g L] (] o
’ ’ ! -. [-] 2 - L} o s .- ’,/
| — m’ . L= m . : T
&y 8 (] 0 0 (] s — ]
N & ) : ' = o' - o O
S 't . " = . :
| | / - (<] a (] s
\ ) ] ] (] U ]
[ L] 0 (] y e (]
/ a a 8 - - e a
’ ’ f// - - ! a ] . - -
! [}
|| \ ' T [9] m" . L PROPERTY BOUNDARY
a a
|| \ ) (] ' . ’ A ' OUTDOOR EQUIPMENT YARD
| | ] B ] . ' ] D. EDWARD HUFFMAN AND
| 'R 0 o | o . L COOLING EQUIPMENT, TYP. WIFE, PAULA LEONARD
] ¢ i . o o =) POWER CONTROLS HUPEMAN
§ (] == PIN: 4714-51-9800.00
’ (0] []
| ( / o BACK-UP GENERATOR, TYP.
f ] ] -l . 0 DB 1031 PG 123]
| , AR\ Y ] BN 'l
- | ) [ SWITCHGEAR, TYP.
T T T — \ N
N 1))
1)
- || ) 17 - ]
v oo e e, I B - )y [ -
e D i | %‘~} ot e T T LOADING DOCK, TYP.
T = — — —_— — — *’ o C\?iow—‘» ! I(b’“‘—%—— o ome o - . - . o ST O —— oHp— oy o
= + - T o — o —— o G, o 110 DUK TRANSMI o I -
N — o, LOPEDUKE SSION EASEMENT
o \ j - — - e onp ok onp O o o ; o of oHe - o L E— -
™ NEaees — - oo — —_— —
3 ,,L _— He OHp— OW_%W% o . oHe o orp orp O o o )
N NN - e Y g
S T | ~ ) N e — T T e
o T e e, ——— r + EXISTING POWER STRUCTURES, TYP. - —
TTeee— e —— =™ ot e — ~ PAULA L HUFFMAN
- T A AR T e / PIN: 4714-61-0126.00
— oo X —-—— ) DB I3E PG 710
- - = ¥ o ~o \OHP\OHP\OHL ] » o — —_
I N\ < N T EXISTING DIRT ROAD, TYP. | 25FT BUFFER, EA. SIDE
\ T T N\ — 44KV DURE T s — o, e EXISTING STREAM
L ~— T igDﬁKE‘TRﬂ\‘S/\V\ISSION EASEMENT 8 T = '
! (~ \ -+ — - EMENT o oy T e - — — / | SITE DATA
N RN — —_—— T — o S —_— / PROJECT NAME: CLT-B
~ —_ — N o one o —_— — DEVELOPER: COMPASS DATACENTERS,
\ = T " T O SS C S, LLC
I ~ J B \ e \ — — T —e— e, X\ - — = \
| - - = 7‘\ — o X ey o oo & ] TOTAL PROJECT PARCEL: +/- 350 AC
~ \ \\ X — —_— T o ) T *SEE PIN NUMBERS THIS EXHIBIT
N A - -
N CURRENT ZONING: RA (COUNTY)
! 30FT LANDSCAPE BUFFER h N \\ \* = PROPOSED ZONING: LI CZ (CITY)
. *ANNEXATION REQUIRED
AN B ~ 7 1PROPOSED CONDITIONAL USE: DATA CENTER
-+ J
S~ — PROPOSED PHASING: CHRONOLOGICAL BUILDING
~ NS / ORDER
\ \ ARTHU |m‘ VID HAIRE FEMA FLOOD PLAIN: ZONE X
20FT REAR SETBACK \ N POND #1 20FT ADDITIONAL BUFFER \ﬁ; A7lat0-258.00 *SEE FIRMETTE 3710470400)
\ VL SEE REZONING CONDITIONS /DB 2452 PG 1233 BUILDING INFORMATION
AN 4\ ) TYP. BUILDING AREA: +/- 270,000 SF
o - OVERALL SITE BUILDING AREA: +/- 1,340,000 SF
— ] \\ L TYP. BUILDING HEIGHT: 30 FT
BUILDING MATERIALS: CONSTRUCTED OF PRE-CAST CONCRETE
\ a \ “A\ SECONDARY ACCESS DRIVE (\ COLUMNS, PANELS AND DOUBLE TEES.
NP \
SETBACKS & BUFFERS:
l \\ \'v" \+ \) FRONT SETBACK 30FT
LAURA N. JORDAN AND > SIDE SETBACK NO MINIMUM
EMILY J. NASH \ %/ ~ REAR SETBACK gg]ll-'l'
PIN: 4714-10-9177.000 | > W s ADJACENT LT BUFFERS S0rr
DB 2724 PG 339 / - ) / /of‘°/ *SEE PROPOSED INCREASED BUFFERS IN PLAN.
>
) - r b — J /o“°/ PARKING REQUIREMENT:
o REQUIRED PARKING:
l PROPERTY BOUNDARY | ( — /’\ \ h /?ev// e WAREHOUSE/DISTRIBUTION: 0.5 PER EMPLOYEE
\ = = g B *TABLE 6.04 FROM SECTION 6.03 OF UDO
> S A l #* _ - k « /C\X/CW FOR 40 EMPLOYEES PER BUILDING: 20 SPACES PER BUILDING
\ \ _ - M/‘“ < /Cy/ FOR 5 BUILDINGS: 100 SPACES TOTAL
. k % \ S e T PARKING PROVIDED: 40 SPACES PER BUILDING
EXISTING BUILDING, TYP. / e % /// X Y. ' 200 SPACES TOTAL
>~ ‘ J B /O\A/\ P - /@\&//«‘\/ = " / / STANDARD 9'x18' 90deg
/\ / ~ 3 \ SOFT FRONT SETBACK < v/ = ) ( CONCEPT PLAN GENERAL NOTES:
\ \ \ \ K - - . = / 1. STAMEY FARM ROAD RIGHT OF WAY, PROPOSED 80FT. TO INCLUDE CITY
7+ 8FT STREET YARD BUFFER - = = / IMPROVEMENT STANDARDS: CURB & GUTTER, SIDEWALK AND STREET
~ - .
™~ ) \ \ _ y = N YARD LANDSCAPING ON PROPERTY-SIDE OF ROADWAY
‘ ( \ \ EXISTING FENCE, TYP. — = = ( ) 2. STAMEY FARM ROAD WIDENING PROPOSED FOR LENGTH OF PROPERTY
H 1 _ F=< = FRONTAGE, TO INCLUDE TWO TRAVEL LANES AND ONE CENTER MEDIAN
25FT BUFFER, EA. SIDE R \ | ) T S | / (TWO WAY LEFT TURN LANE].
\ \ o\ ~ X \ 2 = o ) / 3. HICKORY HIGHWAY (HWY 70) RIGHT OF WAY, PROPOSED 60FT. TO
. INCLUDE CITY IMPROVEMENT STANDARDS: CURB & GUTTER, SIDEWALK
) \ H ( M AND STREET YARD LANDSCAPING ON PROPERTY-SIDE OF ROADWAY.
\ 4. SEE SEPARATE NOTE REGARDING CONDITIONAL ZONING PROPOSED
{ H / J CONDITIONS, THIS EXHIBIT.
\ A ) 5. EXISTING STRUCTURES ARE PROPOSED TO BE REMOVED.
\ % ° 6. DUMPSTER LOCATIONS (COMPACTORS) LOCATED IN LOADING DOCKS
\ AN H J / NEAR LARGER ADMINISTRATIVE AREAS. SEE PLANS.
7.  FENCING SHALL MEET THE REQUIREMENTS OF THE CITY UNIFIED
! % \ vy DEVELOPMENT CODE
) \ '
H J /
PARCEL 2 \ \\% \ | N
. 3 (
:llré.K‘ggs:‘(’)vzve.ooo / \ \ ; : | [/ CITY OF STATESVILLE
% f _ P y / PIN: 4713-59-0697.00
STAMEY PAMELA P LIV TR [ _ - ar = FUTURE 60FT R.O.W. / DB 2952 PG |
COUNTY ZONING: RA \ N - ‘//wﬁ W HICKORY HIGHWAY / J
| NP =~ Iy
~ 372 ZT . [
PARCEL 1 - /w“‘/// o~ / !
PIN: 4713295198.000 PR l /
3008 HICKORY HWY / _ W > ya
STAMEY DAVID J+DEVON O - N | s
COUNTY ZONING: RA T —— N P S\ \ e
T - o / o
B . % 1] S
—~ — o \
D N \ _ — »(/ 5 . 7 E ir—g‘ / /
8FT STREET YARD BUFFER \ PR X —— x A
-~ > s \ ! T X T = 200 0 100 200
20FT ADDITIONAL BUFFER - — /
« DUSTIN WILSON GRANT g |
SEE REZONNG CONDITONS . Z \ . | — g g
P \ PIN: 4713-38-6859.00 , an —— CRAPITC SCALE:
—— o - ‘ pene e ' COMME L. SOUTHER TINCH=" "~ 200 FEET
N\ ; _ =
'I & — \ ROBERT L. STELJES\ : ! / AND WIFE, LYNNE H. 1
LAURA N JORDAN AND Pre AND WIFE, TERESA L.‘\ PARCELZ ! / WALLACE FRAMING, INC. /I SOUTHER
g g . _ag-
P‘NEX;‘L; ;eNéS?Z 0 - JILL COLLINS . 4;;%;595‘65 o \ PIN: 4714318718.000 / PIN: 4713-48-0257.00 P‘N-D‘*B7‘634§8PG5§%6‘-00
fPIN: 4715-28-1975. - PIN: 4713-28-8950.00 1 PIN: 4713-28-9165. / DB 2554 PG 16 /
| DB 2724 PG 339 - v DB 1025 PG 1465 255 STAMEY FARM RD / CONCEPT PLAN
- DB 2173 PG 1035 . STAMEY LAND COMPANY : / ;
\ COUNTY ZONING: RA ,
o !
\ \ 1
\ \ | \ L CLT B
\ '
\ N \ \ /I
N MICHAEL W. HEINTZ AND \ IREDELL COUNTY, NC
- S WIFE, CYNTHIA S. HEINTZ ' /
PIN: 4713-28-5753.00 N \ / .
KENNETH E WALLACE \ DB 515 PG 192 \ : / PREPARED FOR:
PIN: 4713-28-2693.00 AN \
S-S AN \ / COMPASS DATACENTERS
!
\ !
\ \ \ .
CONDITIONAL ZONING LIGHT INDUTRIAL CONDITIONS \ gt . — PREPARED BY.
1. USES LIMITED TO: DATA CENTERS, WAREHOUSE, MINI WAREHOUSES, PUBLIC __—Statesville 77
UTILITY USES, TEMPORARY BATCH PLAN, OUTDOOR STORAGE AS ACCESSORY Il -
USE, GENERAL OFFICE, PARKING, AND PARKS AND PLAYGROUNDS. \ / Kentwood Park
2. REQUIRE TRAFFIC IMPACT ANALYSIS TO BE PERFORMED FOR CITY OF —
STATESVILLE REVIEW AND PERMITTING ' / W THOM As
3. INCREASE PROPERTY LINE BUFFER FROM 30FT TO 50FT WITH ADDITIONAL, / Hickory Hills I &
PROPORTIONAL, LANDSCAPING AT ADJACENT PARCELS WITH EXISTING I/
RESIDENTIAL STRUCTURES TO INCLUDE PINS: 4713-28-1975.00, 4714-50-4518.00, \ H UT TO N
AND 4714-53-5163.00. \ /
1, (printed named), applicant, agree to adhere \ h 220 North Main Steet  Suife 402
ry n \ / Celeste Hinkle Greenville, SC 29601 « 864.412.2222
to the above gondlhonsoplqces on rezoning case #1C - as \ Bostian Heights
adopted by City Council on the day of 202 \ www.thomasandhutfon.com
1 T
\ ! !
' / VI/CI N |TY MA P / JOBNO:  J-32304.0001 DATE:  8/18/2025
: ; DRAWN:  ARF SCALE: 1"=200'
Applicant (Signature Date \ ' < 1" = /E
il (Sig ) N SCALE' ] — ] 5 MlL S REVIEWED: DHC SHEET: 1 of 1
Page 77 of 213



http://www.thomasandhutton.com

RESOLUTION

A RESOLUTION DIRECTING THE CLERK TO
INVESTIGATE A PETITION RECEIVED UNDER G.S. 160A-58

Case No. AX25-08 Compass Data Centers
Parcel #s 4713-29-5198, 4713-39-0218, 4714-23-3766, 4714-34-8407, 4714-44-5207, 4714-
44-5418, 4714-53-2608, and a portion of 4714-31-8718

WHEREAS, a petition requesting annexation of the area described in said petition
has been received on July 25, 2025, by the City Council; and

WHEREAS, G. S. 160A-58 provides that the sufficiency of the petition shall be
investigated by the City Clerk before further annexation proceedings may take place; and

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Statesville deems it advisable to proceed
and respond to the request for annexation.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Statesville:
That the City Clerk is hereby directed to investigate the sufficiency of the above

described petition and to certify as soon as possible to the City Council the results of her
investigation.

Adopted this 15" day of September 2025.

S-E-A-L
CITY OF STATESVILLE
By:
Mayor
ATTEST:
City Clerk

Page 78 of 213



CERTIFICATE OF SUFFICIENCY

Case No. AX25-08 Compass Data Centers
Parcel #s 4713-29-5198, 4713-39-0218, 4714-23-3766, 4714-34-8407, 4714-
44-5207, 4714-44-5418, 4714-53-2608, and a portion of 4714-31-8718

TO THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF STATESVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA:

I, Emily Kurfees, City Clerk, do hereby certify that | have investigated the
petition attached hereto and have found that said petition is signed by all owners
of real property lying in the area described therein, in accordance with G.S. 160A-

58.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, | have hereunto set my hand and affixed the seal
of the City of Statesville, this 15" day of September 2025.

SEAL

Emily Kurfees, City Clerk

Page 79 of 213



RESOLUTION

RESOLUTION FIXING THE DATE OF A PUBLIC HEARING ON THE QUESTION OF
ANNEXATION PURSUANT TO G.S. 160A-58

Case No. AX25-08 Compass Data Centers
Parcel #s4713-29-5198, 4713-39-0218, 4714-23-3766, 4714-34-8407, 4714-44-5207, 4714-
44-5418, 4714-53-2608, and a portion of 4714-31-8718

WHEREAS, a petition requesting annexation of the contiguous area described herein has
been received; and

WHEREAS, the City Council has by resolution directed the City Clerk to investigate the
sufficiency of said petition; and

WHEREAS, certification by the City Clerk as to the sufficiency of said petition has been
made;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Statesville,
North Carolina

Section 1. That a public hearing on the question of annexation of the non-contiguous
area described herein will be held in the Council Chambers of the Statesville City Hall at 6:00
o’clock p.m. on the 6™ day of October 2025.

Section 2. The area proposed for annexation is described as follows:
Parcel 1 — PIN 4713295198.000

BEGINNING AT AN IRON STAKE, GANT'S CORNER, AND RUNS SOUTH 5 DEGREES WEST
31 1/2 POLES TO A STAKE IN THE CENTER OF #10 HIGHWAY, NOW NASH'S CORNER,;
THENCE WITH THE CENTER OF SAID ROAD, NORTH 66 DEGREES EAST 62 POLES TO
THE CENTER OF SAID ROAD, GANT'S LINE; THENCE WITH HER LINE NORTH 85 DEGREES
WEST 52 1/2 POLES TO BEGINNING, CONTAINING 4 8/10 ACRES, MORE OR LESS.

LESS AND EXCEPT THAT PORTION OF THE PROPERTY CONVEYED IN DEED BOOK 683,
PAGE 312.
Parcel 2 — PIN 4713390218.000

BEGINNING AT A POINT LOCATED IN THE CENTER OF U.S. HIGHWAY 64-70, COMMON
CORNER OF HOWARD STAMEY AND EWALL A. STEVENSON, THENCE WITH THE CENTER
OF U.S. HIGHWAY 64-70 SOUTH 64 DEG. 29 MIN. WEST 367.11 FEET TO A POINT, SAID
POINT LOCATED NORTH 64 DEG. 29 MIN. EAST 52.5 FEET FROM A CULVERT RUNNING
UNDER U.S. HIGHWAY 64-70, THENCE WITH THE NEW LINE OF STEVENSON NORTH 20
DEG. 26 MIN 18 SEC. WEST 204.62 FEET TO AN IRON PIN, HOWARD STAMEY'S LINE,
THENCE WITH STANLEY'S LINE SOUTH 85 DEG. 13 MIN 54 SEC. EAST 404.16 FEET TO
THE POINT AND PLACE OF BEGINNING, CONTAINING 0.859 ACRES, MORE OR LESS, ALL
IN ACCORDANCE WITH A SURVEY BY R. B. KESTLER, JR., REGISTERED SURVEYOR,
DATED FEBRUARY 7, 1983.

Page 80 of 213



SUBJECT TO THE EASEMENT AND RIGHT OF WAY OVER THE ABOVE DESCRIBED
PROPERTY FROM THE PROPERTY SHOWN ON THE SURVEY ATTACHED TO DEED BOOK
683, PAGE 312 AT THE EWALL A. STEVENSON PROPERTY, BOOK 214, PAGE 162, TO THAT
CULVERT LYING BENEATH U. S. HIGHWAY 64-70 AS SHOWN ON THE ATTACHED
SURVEY, TO DIG AND MAINTAIN A DITCH FOR THE PURPOSES OF CARRYING OFF
SURPLUS WATER OVER THE CONVEYED PREMISES, WHERE WATER WOULD
NATURALLY FLOW, PROVIDING SUCH DIGGING AND MAINTENANCE SHALL BE FREE OF
COST AND WITHOUT DAMAGE TO THE GRANTEE.

Parcel 3 — PIN 4714233766.000

BEGINNING AT A STAKE AT A GUM TREE, J. F. MOOSE AND MRS. HOWARD GANT'S
CORNER, AND RUNS THENCE WITH MRS. GANT'S LINE, SOUTH 84 DEG. EAST 149.5 FEET
TO A STAKE ON THE BRANCH; THENCE WITH MRS. GANT'S LINE AND THE BRANCH
SOUTH 59 DEG. 10 MIN EAST 217 FEET TO A STAKE ON THE BRANCH; THENCE
CONTINUING WITH MRS. GANT'S LINE NORTH 35 DEG. 55 MIN. EAST 103 FEET TO A
STAKE ON ANOTHER BRANCH; THENCE WITH SAID BRANCH AND MRS. GANT'S LINE
NORTH 19 DEG. 15 MIN. EAST 435 FEET TO A STAKE; THENCE NORTH 50 DEG. EAST 200
FEET TO A STAKE; THENCE NORTH 24 DEG. 30 MIN. EAST 178 FEET TO A STAKE,
LACKEY'S CORNER ON THE SOUTH MARGIN OF THE RIGHT OF WAY OF U. S. HIGHWAY
NO. 64 NORTH BY-PASS; THENCE WITH SAID HIGHWAY SOUTH 72 DEG. WEST 755.4
FEET TO A STAKE ON J. F. MOOSE'S LINE; THENCE WITH HIS LINE SOUTH 54 DEG. WEST
407.2 FEET TO THE BEGINNING, CONTAINING 6.8 ACRES, MORE OR LESS, ACCORDING
TO A SURVEY MADE BY L. B. GRIER, REGISTERED SURVEYOR, AUGUST 3, 1956

Parcel 4 — PIN 4714318718.000

TRACT ONE: BEGINNING AT AN EXISTING IRON PIN, COMMON CORNERS OF DUKE
POWER COMPANY AND STAMEY LAND COMPANY AND RUNS FROM THE BEGINNING
WITH THE LINES OF STAMEY LAND COMPANY, TWO CALLS AS FOLLOWS: SOUTH 84° 43
40" EAST 368.73 FEET TO AN EXISTING IRON PIN, AND SOUTH 04° 11' 24" WEST 368.73
FEET TO AN IRON PIN SET, ANEW CORNER OF STEVEN W. NASH, JR., SAID POINT BEING
LOCATED NORTH 04° 11' 24" EAST 1,343.69 FEET FROM AN EXISTING IRON PIN MARKING
THE COMMON CORNERS OF STAMEY LAND COMPANY AND E. A. STEVENSON; THENCE
WITH A NEW LINE OF NASH, NORTH 40° 16' 09" WEST 526.37 FEET TO THE POINT OF
BEGINNING, CONTAINING 1.5604 ACRES, MORE OR LESS, ACCORDING TO A MAP BY
GERALD V. GRANT AND ASSOCIATES, DATED NOVEMBER 20, 1989.

TRACT TWO: BEGINNING AT AN IRON SET IN THE LINE OF HOWARD STAMEY, WHICH
POINT IS LOCATED NORTH 4 DEG. 14’ 25” EAST 1,718.02 FEET FROM AN EXISTING IRON
MARKING THE COMMON CORNERS OF HOWARD STAMEY AND E.A. STEVENSON, WHICH
POINT IS ALSO ON THE SOUTHERN MARGIN OF THE RIGHT OF WAY OF A DUKE POWER
TRANSMISSION LINE RIGHT-OF-WAY, AND RUNS FROM THE BEGINNING WITH THE
SOUTHERN MARGIN OF SAID TRANSMISSION LINE RIGHT-OF-WAY, NORTH 84 DEG. 40'
57" WEST 939.45 FEET TO AN EXISTING IRON ON THE LINE OF HOWARD STAMEY AS
DESCRIBED IN DEED BOOK 694, PAGE 490; THENCE WITH THE LINES OF SAID HOWARD
STAMEY AS DESCRIBED IN SAID DEED BOOK, TWO (2) CALLS AS FOLLOWS: NORTH 43
DEG. 37' 02" EAST 830.02 FEET TO AN IRON SET, AND NORTH 02 DEG. 51' 01" EAST
1,029.00 FEET TO AN EXISTING STONE, CORNER OF HOWARD STAMEY AS DESCRIBED
IN DEED BOOK 694, PAGE 490; THENCE SOUTH 83 DEG. 56' 02" EAST 363.00 FEET TO AN
IRON SET ON THE WESTERN SIDE OF A BRANCH OR CREEK, LINE OR CORNER OF

Page 81 of 213



STAMEY LAND COMPANY AS DESCRIBED IN DEED BOOK 694, PAGE 505; THENCE WITH
THE LINES OF SAID STAMEY LAND COMPANY AND SAID BRANCH OR CREEK, SIX (6)
CALLS AS FOLLOWS: (1) SOUTH 00 DEG. 02' 42" WEST 218.74 FEET, (2) SOUTH 07 DEG.
02' 11" WEST 170.53 FEET, (3) SOUTH 02 DEG. 05' 26" WEST 248.10 FEET, (4) SOUTH 11
DEG. 08' 18" WEST 164.71 FEET, (5) SOUTH 14 DEG. 57' 23" WEST 546.61 FEET, AND (6)
SOUTH 07 DEG. 57' 24" WEST 115.50 FEET TO AN IRON SET AT SAID CREEK; THENCE
CONTINUING WITH THE LINE OF SAID STAMEY LAND COMPANY, SOUTH 73 DEG. 45' 35"
EAST 165.00 FEET TO AN IRON SET; THENCE SOUTH 04 DEG. 14' 25" WEST 220.73 FEET
TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING, CONTAINING 17.335 ACRES, MORE OR LESS, ACCORDING
TO A MAP PREPARED BY ROBERT J. LACKEY, REGISTERED SURVEYOR, DATED
FEBRUARY 2, 1987. SAVE AND EXCEPT, HOWEVER, FROM THE ABOVE-DESCRIBED
PREMISES A CERTAIN 4.46 ACRE PORTION DEEDED TO DAVID J. STAMEY BY DEED OF
STEPHEN W. NASH, JR. AND WIFE EMILY J. NASH, DATED OCTOBER 13, 1988, WHICH IS
DESCRIBED BY METES AND BOUNDS AS FOLLOWS: BEGINNING AT THE
SOUTHWESTERN CORNER OF STEPHEN W. NASH, JR. AND WIFE'S 17.335 ACRE TRACT,
AS DESCRIBED IN DEED BOOK 745, PAGE 993, AND BEING, ALSO, A CORNER OF DUKE
POWER COMPANY AND RUNS FROM THE BEGINNING WITH THE LINE OF SAID DUKE
POWER COMPANY, NORTH 43 DEG. 37' 45" EAST 489.84 FEET TO A POINT IN THE
CENTER OF A BRANCH, COMMON CORNERS OF HOWARD M. STAMEY, ET AL AND DUKE
POWER COMPANY; THENCE CONTINUING WITH THE LINE OF STAMEY, ET.AL., NORTH
43 DEG. 35' 29" EAST 380.50 FEET TO AN IRON PIN, STAMEY'S CORNER; THENCE WITH A
NEW LINE, SOUTH 02 DEG. 48' 57" WEST 683.21 FEET TO AN IRON PIN FOUND; THENCE
NORTH 84 DEG. 43' 40" WEST 569.08 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING, CONTAINING
4.46 ACRES, MORE OR LESS.

TRACT THREE: BEGINNING AT A POINT IN THE CENTER LINE OF THE FRYE-GILBERT
ROAD ABOUT 1650 FEET SOUTHEASTWARDLY FROM THE INTERSECTION OF THE FRYE-
GILBERT ROAD WITH THE RIGHT-OF-WAYLINE OF INTERSTATE HIGHWAY NO. 40,
WAUGH'S CORNER IN THE ROSEMAN LINE AND RUNNING THENCE WITH WAUGH'S LINE
SOUTH 54 DEG. 30 MIN. WEST 396 FEET TO A STAKE, WAUGH'S CORNER; THENCE WITH
WAUGH'S LINE AND R. G. SMITH'S LINE, SOUTH 0 DEG. 10 MIN. WEST 650 FEET TO A
STAKE IN R. G. SMITH'S LINE; THENCE WITH THE LINE OF R. G. SMITH AND H. M.
MORRISON SOUTH 4 DEG. 8 MIN. WEST 1732 FEET TO A STAKE IN FRED MORRISON'’S
LINE; THENCE WITH FRED MORRISON'S LINE AS FOLLOWS: NORTH 87 DEG. WEST 81
FEET TO A RED OAK; THENCE SOUTH 6 DEG. WEST 200 FEET TO AN IRON PIN; THENCE
SOUTH 80 DEG. EAST 33 FEET TO A STAKE; THENCE SOUTH 3 DEG. WEST 173 FEET TO
A STAKE; THENCE SOUTH 79 DEG. WEST 66 FEET TO A STAKE; THENCE SOUTH 9 DEG.
WEST 198 FEET TO A STAKE IN THE NORTH MARGIN OF N. C. HIGHWAYS NOS. 64 AND
70 ABOUT 6 FEET WEST OF A BRANCH; THENCE WITH THE NORTHERLY MARGIN OF N.
C. HIGHWAYS NOS. 64 AND 70 NORTH 65 DEG. 30 MIN. EAST 154 FEET TO A STAKE IN
FRED MORRISON'S LINE; THENCE WITH FRYE'S LINE SOUTH 4 DEG. 8 MIN. WEST 1148
FEET TO A STONE, FRYE'S CORNER; THENCE WITH THE LINES OF HAL FRYE AND
STEPHEN NASH, NORTH 84 DEG. 30 MIN. WEST 1632 FEET TO A STAKE IN A BRANCH,
NASH'S CORNER; THENCE WITH NASH'S LINE NORTH 135 FEET TO A POINT IN THE
CENTER LINE OF HIGHWAYS NOS. 64 AND 70 AT THE POINT AT WHICH THE CENTER
LINE OF SAID HIGHWAY CROSSES THE CENTER LINE OF A CULVERT; THENCE WITH THE
CENTER LINE OF N. C. HIGHWAYS NOS. 64 AND 70 SOUTH 65 DEG. 30 MIN. WEST 254
FEET TO A STAKE, NASH'S AND STEVENSON'S CORNER; THENCE WITH STEVENSON'S
LINE NORTH 84 DEG. 30 MIN. WEST 893 FEET TO AN IRON PIN, STEVENSON'S CORNER,;
THENCE WITH NASH'S LINE NORTH 5 DEG. 30 MIN. EAST 1938.5 FEET TO A STAKE IN
ELLER BRANCH; THENCE UP AND WITH SAID BRANCH NORTH 73 DEG. WEST 165 FEET

Page 82 of 213



TO A STAKE AT THE JUNCTION OF SAID BRANCH WITH GIBSON BRANCH; THENCE UP
AND WITH SAID GIBSON BRANCH AND NASH'S LINE 1452 FEET TO A STAKE IN THE
BRANCH, NASH'S CORNER; THENCE WITH THE LINE OF NASH AND STAMEY NORTH 84
DEG. 30 MIN. WEST 660 FEET TO A STAKE IN A FIELD, STAMEY'S CORNER; THENCE WITH
STAMEY'S LINE NORTH 4 DEG. 30 MIN. EAST 594 FEET TO A SOURWOOD, HOLDER'S
CORNER IN STAMEY'S LINE; THENCE WITH P. O. HOLDER'S LINE AS FOLLOWS: SOUTH
84 EAST 149.5 FEET TO A STAKE IN THE BRANCH; THENCE SOUTH 55 DEG. 30 MIN. WEST
260 FEET TO A STAKE; THENCE NORTH 5 DEG. 30 MIN. EAST 103 FEET TO A STAKE;
THENCE NORTH 19 DEG. 35 MIN. EAST 435 FEET TO A STAKE; THENCE NORTH 50 DEG.
EAST 200 FEET TO A STAKE; THENCE NORTH 24 DEG. 30 MIN. EAST 178 FEET TO APOINT
IN THE RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF INTERSTATE HIGHWAY NO. 40 AT THE END OF A
CULVERT, HOLDER'S CORNER; THENCE WITH THE RIGHT-OF-WAY OF INTERSTATE
HIGHWAY NO. 40 AS FOLLOWS: NORTH 69 DEG. 10 MIN. EAST 934 FEET TO A STAKE;
THENCE SOUTH 6 DEG. 30 MIN. WEST 20.5 FEET TO A STAKE; THENCE NORTH 82-1/4
DEG. 15 MIN. EAST 479 FEET TO A STAKE; THENCE NORTH 6 DEG. 30 MIN. EAST 20.7
FEET TO A STAKE; THENCE SOUTH 89 DEG. 20 MIN. EAST 428.3 FEET TO A STAKE IN THE
RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF INTERSTATE HIGHWAY NO. 40 AT ITS JUNCTION IN THE FRYE-
GILBERT ROAD; THENCE CONTINUING ACROSS THE FRYE-GILBERT ROAD, NORTH 63
DEG. 45 MIN. EAST 820 FEET TO AN IRON STAKE, MRS. MAUDE GANTT'S CORNER;
THENCE WITH THE MURDOCK, ROSEMAN AND SHARPE LINES, SOUTH 0 DEG. 10 MIN.
WEST 1268 FEET TO A POINT IN THE CENTER LINE OF THE FRYE-GILBERT ROAD,
ROSEMAN'S CORNER; THENCE WITH THE ROSEMAN LINE SOUTH 42 DEG. EAST 314.5
FEET TO A POINT IN THE CENTER LINE OF SAID ROAD, ROSEMAN'S CORNER; THENCE
WITH THE ROSEMAN LINE SOUTH 56 DEG. EAST 141 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING,
CONTAINING 344 ACRES, MORE OR LESS.

THERE IS EXCEPTED FROM THIS CONVEYANCE THE FOLLOWING TRACTS:

1. A5.977 ACRE TRACT CONVEYED BY HOWARD M. STAMEY AND WIFE, TO CHARLES L.
TRAVIS, JR. AND WIFE, JEWELL S. TRAVIS, SUCH CONVEYANCE DATED OCTOBER 15,
1963, AND RECORDED IN BOOK 384, PAGE 137, IREDELL COUNTY REGISTRY.

2. A 2.38 ACRE TRACT CONVEYED BY HOWARD M. STAMEY AND WIFE, TO PHILLIPS
PETROLEUM CO., SUCH CONVEYANCE DATED JUNE 26, 1970, AND RECORDED IN BOOK
490, PAGE 338, IREDELL COUNTY REGISTRY.

3. A 1.12 ACRE TRACT CONVEYED BY HOWARD M. STAMEY AND WIFE, TO REPROCO,
INC., SUCH CONVEYANCE DATED JUNE 26, 1970, AND RECORDED IN BOOK 490, PAGE
336, IREDELL COUNTY REGISTRY.

4. AN APPROXIMATELY 10.8 ACRE TRACT OF LAND AND TWO "SIGN SITES" CONVEYED
BY HOWARD M. STAMEY AND WIFE, TO CRA-DAY PROPERTIPS, INC., SUCH
CONVEYANCE DATED DECEMBER 30, 1970, AND RECORDED IN BOOK 497, PAGE 507,
IREDELL COUNTY REGISTRY, SEE AGREEMENTS BETWEEN PARTIES IN BOOK 490,
PAGE 507 AND BOOK 497, PAGE 505, IREDELL COUNTY REGISTRY.

Parcel 5 — PIN 4714348407.000
BEGINNING AT AN IRON STAKE ON THE SOUTHERN EDGE OF THE CONTROLLED

ACCESS RIGHT OF WAY OF INTERSTATE HIGHWAY 40; THENCE SOUTH 06-34-40 EAST
60 FEET TO AN IRON; THENCE SOUTH 83-25-20 WEST 30 FEET TO AN IRON; THENCE

Page 83 of 213



NORTH 06-34-40 WEST 60 FEET TO AN IRON ON SAID RIGHT OF WAY; THENCE WITH SAID
RIGHT OF WAY, NORTH 83-25-20 EAST 30 FEET TO THE BEGINNING CONTAINING 1,800
SQUARE FEET, MORE OR LESS, AND BEING DESCRIBED ACCORDING TO A PLAT AND
SURVEY PREPARED BY R. B. PHARR, REGISTERED SURVEYOR, DATED NOVEMBER 10,
1970, AND BEING DESIGNED AS SITE #2 ON A COPY OF SAID PLAT RECORDED IN DEED
BOOK 497 AT PAGE 509, IREDELL COUNTY REGISTRY.

Parcel 6 — PIN 4714445207.000

BEGINNING AT AN IRON, SAID IRON BEING LOCATED IN THE SOUTHERN LINE OF A
TRACT CONVEYED TO REPROCO, INC., AND BEING SOUTH 39-13-30 EAST 180 FEET
FROM A CONCRETE MONUMENT LOCATED IN THE SOUTHWEST QUADRANT FORMED
BY INTERSTATE HIGHWAY #40 AND FRYEGILBERT ROAD (STATE ROAD #1512); THENCE
NORTH 50-46-30 EAST 30.27 FEET TO A POINT IN THE CENTER OF STATE ROAD #1512;
THENCE WITH THE CENTER OF STATE ROAD #1512, SOUTH 39-13-30 EAST 170 FEET TO
A POINT IN THE CENTER OF STATE ROAD #1512; THENCE LEAVING STATE ROAD #1512
SOUTH 50-46-30 WEST 30.27 FEET TO AN IRON LOCATED ON THE WEST BANK OF STATE
ROAD #1512; THENCE CONTINUING SOUTH 50-46-30 WEST 315.0 FEET TO AN IRON;
THENCE NORTH 39-13- 30 WEST 394.07 FEET TO A RAILROAD SPIKE IN ROOT OF TREE;
THENCE NORTH 1-58-00 EAST 174.29 FEET TO AN IRON LOCATED ON THE CONTROLLED
ACCESS LINE OF INTERSTATE HIGHWAY #40; THENCE WITH THE CONTROLLED ACCESS
LINE OF INTERSTATE HIGHWAY #40, SOUTH 88-02-00 EAST 40.36 FEET TO AN IRON, SAID
IRON BEING THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF THE 1.12 ACRE TRACT CONVEYED TO
REPROCO, INC.; THENCE WITH THE REPROCO, INC. LINE SOUTH 39-13-30 EAST 328.70
FEET TO AN IRON, THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF REPROCO, INC. TRACT; THENCE
NORTH 50-46-30 EAST 169.73 FEET TO AN IRON, THE POINT AND PLACE OF BEGINNING,
CONTAINING 2.38 ACRES, MORE OR LESS, AND BEING MORE PARTICULARLY SHOWN
ON A PHYSICAL SURVEY DATED MARCH 11, 1970; PREPARED BY KESTLER AND
MACKAY, REGISTERED SURVEYORS.

Parcel 7 — PIN 4714445418.000

BEGINNING AT A CONCRETE MONUMENT LOCATED IN THE SOUTHWEST QUADRANT
FORMED BY THE INTERSECTION OF INTERSTATE HIGHWAY #40 AND FRYE-GILBERT
ROAD (STATE ROAD #1512), SAID CONCRETE MONUMENT BEING SOUTH 33-14-00 EAST
304.10 FEET FROM N.C. GEODETIC SURVEY MONUMENT LOCATED IN THE NORTHWEST
QUADRANT FORMED BY THE INTERSECTION OF INTERSTATE HIGHWAY #40 AND FRYE-
GILBERT ROAD (STATE ROAD #1512); THENCE NORTH 39-47-30 EAST 30.83 FEET TO A
POINT IN THE CENTER OF STATE ROAD #1512; THENCE WITH THE CENTER OF STATE
ROAD #1512 SOUTH 39-13.5-00 EAST 185.87 FEET TO A POINT IN THE CENTER OF STATE
ROAD #1512; THENCE LEAVING STATE ROAD #1512, SOUTH 50-46-30 WEST 30.27 FEET
TO AN IRON LOCATED ON THE BANK OF STATE ROAD #1512; THENCE CONTINUING
SOUTH 50-46-30 WEST 169.73 FEET TO AN IRON; THENCE NORTH 39-13-30 WEST 328.70
FEET TO AN IRON LOCATED ON THE CONTROLLED ACCESS LINE OF INTERSTATE
HIGHWAY #40; THENCE WITH THE SOUTHERN CONTROLLED ACCESS LINE OF
INTERSTATE HIGHWAY #40, SOUTH 88-02-00 EAST 225.70 FEET TO THE CONCRETE
MONUMENT DESIGNATED AS THE POINT AND PLACE OF BEGINNING, CONTAINING 1.12
ACRES, MORE OR LESS, AND BEING MORE PARTICULARLY SHOWN ON A PHYSICAL
SURVEY DATED MARCH 11, 1970 PREPARED BY KESTLER AND MACKAY, REGISTERED

Parcel 8 — PIN 4714532608.000

Page 84 of 213



BEGINNING AT A MAG NAIL SET SAID POINT IN THE RIGHT-OF-WAY OF STATE ROAD
1512 AND BEING NORTH 53-53-16 WEST 449.91 FEET GRID FROM THE N.C.G.S. GILBERT
HAVING READINGS OF NORTH: 743,406.0656'; EAST: 1,415,753.527'; NAD 83; THENCE
FROM SAID POINT OF BEGINNING, SOUTH 72-34-15 WEST 227.33 FEET TO A REBAR SET;
THENCE NORTH 57-42-22 WEST 73.38 FEET TO A REBAR SET; THENCE NORTH 18-07-38
WEST 70.00 FEET TO A REBAR SET; THENCE NORTH 33-21-59 EAST 53.82 FEET TO A
REBAR SET; THENCE NORTH 72-34-15 EAST 157.25 FEET TO A MAG NAIL SET; THENCE
WITHIN THE RIGHT-OF-WAY OF STATE ROAD 1512, THE FOLLOWING CALLS: SOUTH 40-
59-27 EAST 17.48 FEET; SOUTH 41-36-50 EAST 48.78 FEET; SOUTH 43-04-43 EAST 62.72
FEET; SOUTH 45-01-33 EAST 45.19 FEET; SOUTH 46-33-45 EAST 3.30 FEET TO THE POINT
OF BEGINNING, CONTAINING 0.818 ACRE, MORE OR LESS, AS SHOWN ON SURVEY BY
DAVID B. JORDAN, REGISTERED LAND SURVEYOR, DATED SEPTEMBER 30, 2003.

THERE IS ALSO CONVEYED IS THE EASEMENTS DESCRIBED IN DEED RECORDED IN
BOOK 1527, PAGES 365-367, IREDELL COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA.

Section 3. Notice of said public hearing shall be published in the Statesville Record and
Landmark, a newspaper having general circulation in the City of Statesville, at least 10 days prior
to the date of the public hearing.

Adopted this 15" day of September 2025.
CITY OF STATESVILLE

By:
Mayor

ATTEST:

City Clerk

Page 85 of 213



Page Intentionally Left Blank

Page 86 of 213



CITY COUNCIL ACTION REQUEST

TO: Ron Smith, City Manager

FROM: Matthew Kirkendall, Senior Planner
DATE: 9/5/2025 2:01 PM

ACTION NEEDED ON: September 15, 2025

(Date of Council Meeting)

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED:

Consider passing a resolution directing the City Clerk to investigate a petition of annexation,
AX25-09 City of Statesville Fire Station 5 at 533 Gaither Road, receive the City Clerk’s Certificate
of Sufficiency, and consider passing a resolution fixing a date of October 6, 2025, for a public
hearing for the petition of annexation.

1. Summary of Information:
The property is approximately 12.174 acres located at 533 Gaither Road (see Location Map, Aerial
Photo and Site Photo). The city is annexing the property to eventually build a new fire station, Station
5, to utilize City water and sewer (see current zoning and utilities map). Statesville Public Power can
serve this site. The existing home on the site will be used in the interim.

2. Previous Council or Relevant Actions:
City Council approved purchasing the two lots, contingent upon annexation.

3. Strategic Initiatives Supported/Impacted:
Developing Our City: N/A
Connecting Our City: Invest in services and critical public infrastructure to align with land use plan
goals and accommodate future growth citywide.
Connecting Our Communities: Provide reliable, high-quality public safety to ensure the wellbeing
of residents, businesses, and visitors.
Strategic Plan Values: N/A

This property is in the Tier 1 Growth Area of the 2045 Land Development Plan and are adjacent to
city limits. Station 5 located here will improve fire response time for the US 21 corridor and other
areas north of the city.

4. Budget/Funding Implications:
The current tax value of the parcels is $921,510 and the estimated value at full buildout is TBD.

5. Consequences for Not Acting:
Without annexation the city could still access sewer at 2% times the rate with City Council approval.

6. Department Recommendation:

The department recommends passing the resolutions and setting a date of October 6, 2025, for a
public hearing on this annexation request.

Page 87 of 213



7. Manager Comments:
Recommend for approval.

8. Next Steps:
Advertise for the public hearing.

9. Attachments:
1. Packet Maps
2. Resolution_Clerk Investigation_-Contiguous_AX25-09 Station 5
3. Certificate of Sufficiency_Annexation_AX25-09 Station 5
4. Resolution to Set Public Hearing_ AX25-09 Station 5 2

Page 88 of 213



City of Statesville
Planning Department

AX25-09 Statesville Fire TROVALT T ore—"

Station 5 E B’D

533 Gaither Road
4745-04-1052

®

QUEENS CREST pg

Page 89 of 213

y TATESVIL
A
7_ GAITHER RD
WUSEUM RD
w E o
S £ 140
CITY of N\// N _lm@m-.-ﬁ
S [ 1 Existing City Limit
NORTH CAROLINA m m_:_—u.—mﬂ—” Parcel
My I

——y—2YEs

Location Map — AX25-09 Station 5



(32}
~—
N
Y—
o
o
(e2}
(]
(@]
©
o

Gaither Rd

Aerial Photo — AX25-09 Station 5




G UONE.IS B0-GZXY — 010Ud 9US

Page 91 of 213




City of Statesville
Planning Department

AX25-09 Statesville Fire
Station 5

.\..\l.ll\\\llll : c?_znzzt -
g

| —

CITY o R_-10
11 — Sewer_
,,,,,,,,,,,,, I =
1 ,_ \. \ —— Water_|
- - £33 subiec
o: [ i VTR

1.1 J——
e
£}
-
=]
1 7]
|

Page 92 of 213

Current Zoning and Utilities — AX25-09 Station 5



RESOLUTION

A RESOLUTION DIRECTING THE CLERK TO
INVESTIGATE A PETITION RECEIVED UNDER G.S. 160A-31

Case No. AX25-09 Statesville Fire Department Station 5
Parcel 4745-04-1052

WHEREAS, a petition requesting annexation of the area described in said petition
has been received on August 7, 2025, by the City Council; and

WHEREAS, G. S. 160A-31 provides that the sufficiency of the petition shall be
investigated by the City Clerk before further annexation proceedings may take place; and

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Statesville deems it advisable to proceed
and respond to the request for annexation.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Statesville:
That the City Clerk is hereby directed to investigate the sufficiency of the above

described petition and to certify as soon as possible to the City Council the results of her
investigation.

Adopted this 15" day of September 2025.

S-E-A-L
CITY OF STATESVILLE
By:
Mayor
ATTEST:
City Clerk

Page 93 of 213



CERTIFICATE OF SUFFICIENCY

Case No. AX25-09 Statesville Fire Department Station 5
Parcel 4745-04-1052

TO THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF STATESVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA:
I, Emily Kurfees, City Clerk, do hereby certify that | have investigated the petition
attached hereto and have found that said petition is signed by all owners of real property

lying in the area described therein, in accordance with G.S. 160A-31.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, | have hereunto set my hand and affixed the seal of the
City of Statesville, this 15" day of September 2025.

SEAL

Emily Kurfees, City Clerk

Page 94 of 213



RESOLUTION

RESOLUTION FIXING THE DATE OF A PUBLIC HEARING ON THE QUESTION OF
ANNEXATION PURSUANT TO G.S. 160A-31

Case No. AX25-09 Statesville Fire Department Station 5
Parcel 4745-04-1052

WHEREAS, a petition requesting annexation of the contiguous area described herein has
been received; and

WHEREAS, the City Council has by resolution directed the City Clerk to investigate the
sufficiency of said petition; and

WHEREAS, certification by the City Clerk as to the sufficiency of said petition has been
made;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Statesville,
North Carolina.

Section 1. That a public hearing on the question of annexation of the contiguous area
described herein will be held in the Council Chambers of the Statesville City Hall at 6:00 o’clock
p.m. on the 6™ day of October 2025.

Section 2. The area proposed for annexation is described as follows:

BEGINNING at a mag nail set at NCGS coordinates North: 753534.468 feet, and East
1439563.252 feet NAD: 83 combined factor: 0.9998832. Said mag nail being situated North 18-
47-15 East 93.75 feet from NCGS Monument "Gray" and being situated within the Right-of-way
of State Road 2003 known as Radio Road; and running thence North 06-28-22 East 105.77 feet
to an existing survey spike within the center of the intersection of Radio Road and State Road
1931, known as Museum Road; and running thence North 45-06-26 West 38.72 feet to an iron,
being a comer of the property of Western Avenue Baptist Church as described in Deed recorded
in Deed Book 646, Page 477, Iredell County Regist1y; and being also on the northern edge of the
Right-of-way of Museum Road and the western edge of the Right-of-Way of Radio Road and
running thence with the line of the Western Avenue Baptist Church property and with the western
line of the Right-of-Way of Radio Road, North 06-46-34 East 46.55 feet to a 1/2" rebar; and
running thence with the curve of the western line of Right-of-Way of Radio Road, said curve
having a radius of 492.80 feet and an arc of 35.64 feet, North 08-53-53 East a chord distance of
35.63 feet to a point; and continuing thence with the curve of the western line of the Right-of-Way
of Radio Road, said curve having a radius of 492.80 feet, an arc distance of 188.48 feet, North
21-55-36 East 187.33 feet to an iron; and running thence to an iron being a corner of the
Statesville Elks Club prope1iy and continuing thence with the western line of the Right-of-Way of
Radio Road and with the line of Statesville Elks Club property, North 32-52-55 East 405.07 feet
to an iron set; and running thence South 57-07-44 East 60.04 feet to a point on the eastern line
of the Right-of-Way of Radio Road, and being a corner of the city of Statesville property as
described in Deed recorded in Deed Book 1336, Page 1180, Iredell County Registry; and running
thence with the line of the City of Statesville, North 81-26-49 East 399.08 feet to a 1/2 inch rebar
and continuing with the line of the property of the City of Statesville, North 89-15-21 East 137.09
feetto a 1/2 inch rebar and continuing thence with the line of the City of Statesville property, South
87-10-12 East 244.60 feet to an iron, being a comer of the property of Dorothy Edwards Gaither

Page 95 of 213



as described in Deed recorded in Deed Book 766, Page 277, Iredell County Registry; and running
thence with the Dorothy Gaither line, South 08-42-27 West 177.41 feet to a 1 1/4 inch existing
iron pipe; and running thence South 71-12-14 West 198.05 feet to an iron set; running thence
South 09-42-01 West 312.33 feet to an iron set; and running thence with a curve having a radius
0f3647.93 feet, an arc distance 0f38.88 feet, North 87-30-09 East, and a chord distance of 38.88
feet to an iron set; and running thence South 09-42-01 West 72.92 feet to an iron set; being the
northwest corner of the property of Geroge B. Taylor as described in Deed recorded in Deed Book
670, Page 598, Iredell County Registry; running thence with the northern line of the Taylor
property, South 88-49-14 West 195.11 feet to an iron set; and running thence with the western
line of the Taylor property, South 01-48-46 East 60.31 feet to a railroad spike; and running thence
South 80-37-31 West 247.82 feet to an axle being the southeastern corner of the Claudia Gray
property as described in Deed recorded in Deed Book 811, Page 808, Iredell County Registry;
and running thence North 03-53-42 East 58.03 feet to a fence post being the northeast corner of
the Claudia Gray property; and running thence with the northern line of the Gray property, South
79-36-20 West 444.97 feet to the point and place of BEGINNING, containing 13.08 acres, more
or less, and being in accordance with that survey of Ted M. Morettes, Registered Land Surveyor,
dated January 2, 2004, in which reference is made for a more particular description.

Included with this conveyance is a reserved access easement over and across the lands of
George
B. Taylor as described in Deed Book 670, Page 598, Iredell County Registry.

The property conveyed herein is SUBJECT TO that certain utility easement of the City of
Statesville dated November 12, 1999, and recorded at Deed Book 1172, Page 1264, Iredell
County Registry and also that certain utility easement to the City of Statesville dated November
20, 1986, and recorded at Deed Book 741, Page 184, Iredell County Registry.

SAVING AND EXCEPTING the property described in the Deed for Highway Right-of-Way
recorded in Deed Book 2115, page 2160, Iredell County Registry.

PIN: 4745-04-1052, formerly PIN'S: 4745-03-1927.000 and 4745-03-0683.000
Property Address: 533 Gaither Road, Statesville, NC 28625

Section 3. Notice of said public hearing shall be published in the Statesville Record and
Landmark, a newspaper having general circulation in the City of Statesville, at least 10 days
prior to the date of the public hearing.

Adopted this 15" day of September 2025.
CITY OF STATESVILLE

By:
Mayor
ATTEST:

City Clerk

Page 96 of 213



CITY COUNCIL ACTION REQUEST

TO: Ron Smith, City Manager

FROM: John M. Ferguson, Airport Director
DATE: 9/4/2025 5:18 PM

ACTION NEEDED ON: September 15, 2025

(Date of Council Meeting)

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED:

Consider approving a work authorization with Parrish and Partners for engineering services for
the Runway Safety Area Improvement Project in the amount of $61,155.00.

1. Summary of Information:

In July 2023, as part of the Fiscal Year 2022 Supplemental Appropriation by FAA, Statesville
Regional Airport was allocated a $500,000 grant with a 90%/10% federal/local share for the purpose
of making improvements within the existing Runway Safety Area (RSA). The existing RSA has
several non-standard conditions, such as an erosion control basin from a project several years ago
that was never removed. This project intends to address two primary areas, but will address any
others that can be covered within the grant amount. See the attached project sketch for more
detailed information.

2. Previous Council or Relevant Actions:
Approved FAA grant in the amount of $500,000 in June of 2024.

3. Strategic Initiatives Supported/Impacted:
Developing Our City: N/A
Connecting Our City: Proactively maintain existing infrastructure assets and systems to ensure
current quality and long-term viability.
Connecting Our Communities: N/A
Strategic Plan Values: We value Quality and Creativity

This project will remove a safety obstruction located on the Statesville Regional Airport

4. Budget/Funding Implications:
Project cost is $500,000 with $450,000 covered by the grant and $25,000 provided by the City and
$25,000 provided by Iredell County.

5. Consequences for Not Acting:
An FAA safety violation will remain in place.

6. Department Recommendation:
Airport Staff recommends approval.

7. Manager Comments:

Page 97 of 213



Recommen<ns1:XMLFault xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat"><ns1:faultstring xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat">java.lang.OutOfMemoryError: Java heap space</ns1:faultstring></ns1:XMLFault>